INNO-TECH
HOLDINGS LIMITE[l
EREZEZKRBRELT
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(MERETMRILZERLA)
(Stock Code R : 8202)

Annual Report 2 iz

07/08

*For identification purposes only {2 2% R



CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
("GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole
or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Inno-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Directors”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to Inno-Tech Holdings Limited. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (i) the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (i) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading; and (i) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumption that are fair and reasonable.
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Five-year Financial Summary

AFMBHME

Period from 1 April 2007
to 30 June 2008
“EZ+EMA-HZE
—EBN\ERAZTALEA

Period from 1 July to 30 June
tA—-HBZEXA=THLEH

2008 2007 2006 00) 2004

“EEE
Unaudited

—gR\F  —ITLF  CITAF THE
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
REY REERZ REEZ RBE AEEG
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT FHET THET THET

Turmover SEE] 57,342 72,343 94,175 35,970
Cost of services FRAS A (42,046) (53,566) 67,611) (13,316)
Gross Profit ES| 15,296 18,777 26,564 22,654
Other revenue Hulg A 3,285 1,190 555 67
Research and development MERAERT

expenses - - 872) (94)
Marketing and promotion THHREREE

expenses 53 (2,476) (1,055) (1,369) (3,085)
Administrative expenses TREX (14,372) (21,487) (9,725) (10,568)
(Loss)/profit from operations L (BE) ER 1,733 2,575) 15,153 8,974
(Loss)/profit attributable BREREE(BE),/

to shareholders el (4,489) (9,081) 8,218 4,414
Dividends [dsS - - - -
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(EE),/ &R

- Basic —H&K (0.88)cents{l] (1.81)centsfli  1.55centsfli  0.92 cents {l

As at 30 June
WAB=+H
2008
—2E\E  —TT{ TEAE

Audited Unaudited Unaudited
RER REEZ REEZ REEZ
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TAT TAT BT THAT

Total assets BEE 365,705 133,206 146,921 108,541
Total liabilities wafE (28,975) (80,191) (95,226) (70,988)
Shareholders’ funds REES 336,730 53,015 51,695 37,553
Non-current assets FRBEE 126,371 47,609 40,923 28,753
Current assets REEE 239,334 85,597 105,998 79,788
Current liabilities neaE (18,902) (64,822) (85,706) (59,988)
Non-current liabilities FErREEE (10,073) (15,369) (9,520) (11,000)
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to report the Group’s
results for the 15-month period ended 30 June 2008.

We have changed our year end from 31 March to 30 June in this period
in order to align our reporting cycle to our business activities in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

We faced a very challenging year as the fallout of the sub-prime
mortgage crisis in the US and the broad based austerity measures
imposed by Beijing continued to affect our business activities. As the
economy remains weak in the US and the global financial turbulence
deepens, PRC will no doubt be affected in today’s globalization of the
economies. We are however very confidence of the resilience of the
economy in the PRC can weather the current turmoil and emerge as a
stronger economic entity.

The domestic sale of i-Panel and Apbus products and the provision
of intranet design for residential communities in the PRC remained the
core business of the Group over the past reporting period. Our sales
have increased significantly in the first half of the period underpinned
by robust growth in the residential market but slowed down gradually
in the latter part of the period in line with the overall contraction in the
residential market as the market felt the effect of the austerity measures
imposed by Beijing. We feel this part of our business will remain fairly
stable moving forward.

We have been very active in developing our hospitality business in PRC
over the past year. We are focusing on the economy hotel sector of the
hospitality industry as we believe this sector offers tremendous growth
opportunities for the Group. We have acquired two hotel properties
and signed a number of lease/management contracts over the past
year. We have developed our own economy hotel brand and they
are branded as “YES” hotels. The first YES hotel in Dongguang was
opened in August this year and two more YES hotels in Southern China
are under renovation currently. We are also planning renovation work
for several additional hotels at the moment and we plan to commence
renovation work for these hotels before December this year.

Our health care business in PRC through our investment in the United
Premier Medical Group Limited (“UPMG”) has also taken a momentous
step forward. In July 2008, the Share Exchange Agreement between
UPMG and the China Health Care Corporation (“CHCC”) was completed
and UPMG has since operating under the name of CHCC and traded
on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board of the United States. This will
provide a more diverse funding base for UPMG to support its future
business development. We believe this will also enhance the value of
the Group’s investment in UPMG.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my deepest
appreciation to all directors, management, and staff for their hard
work and contributions in the past year. Finally, our shareholders and
business partners also deserved our most sincere gratitude for their
unrelenting trust and support to the Group.
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The Group reported a turnover of HK$143,971,000 for the period
ended 30 June 2008, representing an increase of approximately 233%
compared with the turnover of HK$43,236,000 for the year ended
31 March 2007. During the approximately 15 months of operation,
the intelligence system business sector contributed a turnover of
approximately HK$142,686,000 and the Hotel business sector
contributed a turnover of approximately HK$1,285,000 to the Group
respectively.

Gross profit for the Group increased by approximately 89% to
approximately HK$32,007,000 (2007: HK$16,949,000).

The Group’s loss before taxation as at 30 June 2008 was approximately
HK$(68,743,000) (2007: HK$(2,245,000)).

Loss per share as at 30 June 2008 was HKB.28 cents (2007: HKO.84
cents).

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
period ended 30 June 2008 (2007: Nil).

Software Application Solutions

Over the past year, the domestic sale of i-Panel and Apbus products
and the provision of intranet design for residential communities remained
the core business of the Group. As it is the dual corporate strategy of
the Group to strengthen its existing business, and at the same time
seeking opportunities to expand into other industries such as health
care industry, economy hotel industry as well as advertising industry
utilizing its electronic software solutions as a platform. The Company
has been expanded into the health care and economy hotel industry
during the past year and will actively seek potential business partners in
other areas such as out-door advertisement utilizing our hotel platform.

Economy Hotel Business

The Group has been expanding and enhancing its business by applying
electronic software application solutions to different market segments in
the provision of hotel management services.
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Economy Hotel Business (continued)

In pursuit of the expansion strategy, the Group announced on 11
October 2007, that it has entered into a joint venture agreement with
Swiss-Belt Hotel International Limited (“SBI”) to form a joint venture
which will be principally engaged in the management, training and
operation of economy hotels in the PRC. In June 2008, the Group
entered into a joint venture agreement with Zhe Jiang Harmony Group
(“ZJHG”) which will then engaged in the management and operation
of economy hotels in the PRC. ZJHG agreed to provide 200 hotel
properties for the Group to choose and considered appropriate to
be leased by the joint venture company by 30 June 2010. Such hotel
properties will be leased to the joint venture company by ZJHG rental
free for a period of not less than 15 years.

In addition to the major joint venture agreements, the Group announced
on 29 October 2007 that the Group has entered into nine management
contracts with Independent Third Parties in relation to the management
of nine hotels located at Kaiping City, Dongguan City, Shaoguan and
Zhaoging, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

In pursuit of the second limb of our economy hotel business strategy,
the Group had completed the acquisition of two hotel properties in the
PRC. The Directors of the Group are of the view that the acquisition of
hotel properties in the PRC will stabilize the Group’s investment in hotel
business in a long run; Forming joint venture with strategic business
partner in hotel operation and management business enables the Group
to expand its branded hotel chains rapidly into a list of big five in the
PRC.

Investment in Health Care Business

In January 2008, United Premier Medical Group Limited (“UPMG”),
which is owned as to approximately 35.57% by Autoscale Resources
Limited (“Autoscale”), a subsidiary which is owned as to approximately
56% by the Group entered into the Share Exchange Agreement with
China Health Care Corporation (“CHCC”) (formerly known as The
Cavalier Group). In July 2008, the Share Exchange Agreement was
completed, UPMG commenced operating under the name of CHCC
and trading on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board of the United States
under code number CNHL. The Directors are of the view that this would
provide an opportunity to enhance the value the Group’s investment in
UPMG.
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Investment in Health Care Business (continued)

The Directors are of the view that the balance of Eastern and Western
expertise, shared vision, and track record of past success of UPMG will
propel CHCC to grow successfully. Driven by the noble underpinning
to provide premier healthcare services through Chinese caregivers to
Chinese middle-class communities, CHCC will take this mindset to
move forward and continue with progressive track record. In addition,
investment in CHCC will maximize shareholder value through the public
markets listing.

The Company’s progress in the hotel business sectors has been in line
with our corporate strategy. Despite the continued global economic
slowdown and external uncertainties, the PRC reported the 9.9%
growth this year and the 8.6% forecast growth for the next year which
continues to hold with steady economic growth. Sectorwise, the PRC
is the world’s fourth largest country for inbound tourism. The number of
oversea tourists was 131.87 million in 2007. Foreign exchange income
was 41.9 bilion U.S. dollars, the world’s sixth in 2007. The number of
domestic tourists totaled 1.61 billion, with a total income of RMB777.1
billion. According to the World Tourism Organization, in 2020, the
PRC will become the largest tourist country and the fourth largest for
overseas travel.

The recent economic sluggishness could present opportunities for the
Group’s long term investments which enhance the Group’s further
expansion into different business sectors in the PRC.

The Group, through its Board and management, has demonstrated its
commitment to identify and capitalize new opportunities to achieve the
financial growth for the Company and to maximize shareholder value.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group is financially healthy in terms of its liquidity and net debt
position. As at 30 June 2008, the net current assets of the Group
were at a healthy level of approximately HK$136,282,000 (2007:
HK$31,678,000). Out of the current assets as at 30 June 2008,
approximately HK$50,305,000 (2007: HK$15,121,000) were cash and
bank balances. The current ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2008 and
31 March 2007 were 249% and 168% respectively. As at 30 June
2008, bank overdrafts and short term bank borrowings and convertible
bonds in aggregate amounted to approximately HK$14,837,000 (2007:
HK$26,068,000). Net debt (i.e. total bank borrowings less cash and
cash equivalent and pledged deposits) as at 30 June 2008 was Nil (2007:
HK$10,947,000) and accordingly net debt gearing ratio (i.e. net debt/
net assets) as at 30 June 2008 and 31 March 2007 were Nil and 17.1%
respectively.

On 19 April 2007, the Company placed 451,000,000 shares (as to
175,500,000 shares to each of Wong Yuen Yee and Wong Yao Wing
being the connected persons of the Company and 100,000,000 shares
to independent third party) and raised approximately HK$16,800,000
for acquisition of 56% interests in the issued share capital of Autoscale
Resources Limited and general working capital purpose.

On 25 May 2007, the Company placed 184,884,900 shares to
independent third parties and raised approximately HK$203,37.3,000 for
the development into hotel business in the PRC.

On 27 July 2007, the Company issued 63,000,000 shares being the
shares converted from redeemable convertible notes in the aggregated
principal amounts of HK$6,300,000 due on 31 July 2008. Details of
the convertible notes have been disclosed in the Company’s circular to
shareholders dated 12 July 2005.
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During the period ended 30 June 2008, the majority of the Group’s
income and expenses was denominated in Hong Kong dollar while
an insignificant portion of expenses was denominated in Renminbi or
United States dollar.

Up to 30 June 2008, there were no borrowings denominated in foreign
currency. The management of the Company is of the opinion that
the Group has insignificant exposure to interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk. As a result, the Group had not used any financial
instruments for hedging against fluctuation in interest rate nor foreign
exchange for the period ended 30 June 2008.

Bank deposits of HK$13,000,000 (2007: HK$13,000,000) as at 30
June 2008 have been pledged against banking facilities granted to the
Group.

Details of contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in note 42 to the
financial statements.

Save as disclosed in the circular to the shareholders in relation to
acquisition of an interest in Autoscale Resources Limited which
constituted a major and connected transaction of the Group under the
GEM Listing Rules issued on 26 March 2007, there were no material
acquisitions and disposals by the Group during the period ended 30
June 2008. The Group will continue to look for possibilities of forming
alliances or any investment opportunities with the strategic partners.
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The average number of employees (including Directors) was 52 as at
30 June 2008 (2007: 14), and the total remuneration for the period
ended 30 June 2008 was approximately HK$55,075,000 (2007:
HK$7,015,000). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, working experience and the prevailing market price. Other
employee benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance and
medical coverage, training programs and share option scheme.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the period ended 30 June 2008 (2007: Nil) and no interim dividend was
paid during the period (2007: Nil).

Details of post balance sheet event of the Group are set out in note 44
1o the financial statements.
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Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, aged 46 MBA, BSoSc (Hon) HKU

Chairman and Executive Director

Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, aged 46, is one of the founders of the Group.
Ms. Wong is the chairman and an executive director of the Group. Ms.
Wong is the sister of Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, who is the chief operation
officer and executive Director. Ms. Wong is responsible for formulating
and monitoring the Group’s overall strategic plan and development.
Ms. Wong graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree of social sciences in 1984 and a master degree in business
administration in 1993. Ms. Wong has over 23 years of experience in
property development and management in both the PRC and Hong
Kong. She worked as a general manager in Plotio Holdings Limited
for the period from 1985 to 1991. She was the executive director and
board consultant of Soundwill Holdings Limited in Hong Kong for the
periods from 1993 to 1997 and from 1997 to 1998 respectively. She
was appointed as the director of Land First Holdings Limited for the
period from 1998 to 1999. Currently, Ms. Wong is a director of United
Premier Medical Group Limited (“UPMG”) and China Health Care
Corporation whose common stocks are quoted on the Over-The-
Counter Bulletin Board of the United States.

Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert, aged 50 MBA HKU

Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and Compliance Officer

Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert, aged 50 is the deputy chairman and
an executive director of the Group. Mr. Wong is also the compliance
officer of the Company. He is responsible for the Group’s corporate
management and strategic planning for the Group’s overall business.
Mr. Wong graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a master
degree in business administration in 1993. He has over 25 years
of experience in the field of information technology and 8 years of
experience in lecturing at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and
has also been working in commercial sectors for over 12 years as senior
management. He also has ample knowledge of software development
and project management in various industries and has acquired
substantial business and technical knowledge in telecommunication,
Internet, e-commerce and networking. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Wong was the president of HealthAnswers Asia Pte Ltd., and the
founder and managing director of Expert System Co., Ltd. And Expert
System Solution Ltd. Mr. Wong joined the Group in January 2001.
In 2005, he was awarded the “Chief Executive’s Commendation for
Community Service”. Currently, Mr. Wong also the Chief Executive
Officer of (UPMG) and a director of China Health Care Corporation
whose common stocks are quoted on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin
Board of the United States.
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Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, aged 45

Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operation
Officer

Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, aged 45, is one of the founders of the Group.
Mr. Wong is the Chief operation officer and an executive director of the
Group. Mr. Wong is responsible for the Group’s daily operation and
customer services, and sale and marketing activities for promoting the
Group’s products and services. Mr. Wong graduated from Shue Yan
University (formerly known as Shue Yan College) with a higher diploma
in business administration in 1986. Mr. Wong has over 20 years of
experience in the IT industry and extensive experience in marketing,
research and business development in the Asia Pacific Region and
Eastern Europe. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the executive
officer of Bell Technology Ltd. with principal duties relating to system
design, computer, networking Internet services and computer products
trading for the period from 1989-1998. In addition, he played a major
role in business development, particularly in the PRC market, whilst
working with Bell Technology Itd., Mr. Wong was one of the founders
of the portal “www.b66.com” in 1996. Mr. Wong is the brother of Ms.
Wong Yuen Yee, who is the chairman and an executive director.

Mr. Lam Shiu San, aged 35

Executive Director and Chief Technology Officer

Mr. Lam Shiu San, aged 35, is the Chief technology officer and as
executive Director of the Group. He is responsible for monitoring the
hardware and software development of the Group. He is also in charge
of all the technical issue of the Group’s projects. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lam was the technical director of NetTrend Computer
for the period from 1997 to 2000 and was the technical manager of
Bell Technology Limited for the period from 1993 to 1997. He has
approximately 15 years of experience in software development, network
infrastructure design, system administration and portal site development.
He was also one of the founders of the portal “www.b66.com”. Mr.
Lam holds a Certificate of Computer and Communication Engineering
and a Microsoft Certificated Professional + Internet and is a Microsoft
Certificated Systems Engineer. Mr. Lam joined the Group in July 2000.
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Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles, aged 58 BSc HKU

Independent Non-Executive Director and Audit Committee
Member

Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles, aged 58, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Group. Mr. Wong graduated from The Hong
Kong University in 1972 with a bachelor degree of Science and became
a Solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1976, a solicitor of
the Supreme Court of England & Wales in 1978, Barrister & Solicitor of
the Supreme Court of Victoria, Australia in 1983, a Notary Public since
1987, Advocate & Solicitor of Supreme Court of Republic of Singapore
in 1990. Mr. Wong is currently a partner of Messrs. Lo, Wong & Tsui,
Solicitors. Mr. Wong has served as a Temporary Deputy Registrar of the
High Court and he is also an Assistant Chief Commissioner of the Scout
Association of Hong Kong. He was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in February 2004.

Mr. Lai Ying Sum, aged 46 MBA Edin., MSc CUHK, LLB Lond.

Independent Non-Executive Director and Audit Committee
Member

Mr. Lai Ying Sum, aged 46, was appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company on 3 March 2006. Mr. Lai is the proprietor of Sam Lai & Co.,
a CPA firm in Central. Mr. Lai was admitted respectively as member and
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in 1994 and 1999. He has over 17 years of experience in auditing and
advising different companies. Mr. Lai holds two master degrees, an
MBA degree from the University of Edinburgh and a Master of Science
Degree in Business Economics from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lai also holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from the University
of London and is a member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Cheng King Hung, aged 53

Independent Non-Executive Director and Audit Committee
Member

Mr. Cheng King Hung, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company on 16 May 2007. Mr. Cheng graduated from the Southern
lllinois University at Carbondale, United States of America with a
Bachelor of Science in Special Major: Fim-Television Communication
in 1980. Mr. Cheng obtained the degree of Master of Philosophy in
Communication from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986
and the degree of Doctor of Philosophy from the Research Institute in
Chinese Literature and History, Hong Kong Chu Hai College in 1991. Mr.
Cheng has worked as a copywriter with the Television and Broadcasting
Limited from 1980 to 1981. Between 1981 and 1990, Mr. Cheng was
an information officer with the Government Information Services. Mr.
Cheng left the civil service in 1990 to join the Kowloon-Canton Railway
Corporation as a community relations manager until 1992. Mr. Cheng
was Head of News & Media Section of Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology between 1992 to 2000. Mr. Cheng has been a school
manager of YLPMS Tang Siu Tong Secondary School since 2005 and
is currently the chairman of Writers Fellowship and executive committee
member of Group 26 (environmental industries) of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries.

Ms. Wong Yuen Man, Alice, aged 42 BSc

Director of Human Resources and Communications

Ms. Wong Yuen Man, Alice, aged 42, is the director of human resources
and business development of the Group. Ms. Wong is the sister of Ms.
Wong Yuen Yee, who is the chairman and an executive Director. Ms.
Wong is responsible for human resources, administration and business
development. Ms. Wong graduated from Indiana State University in
Indiana, US with a bachelor degree in public relations. She has over
18 years of experience in the field of communications and human
resources. Ms. Wong has worked for 9 years with American Consulate
General in Hong Kong and has handled the visit of US Secretary of
State and President Clinton in 1997 and 1998 respectively. Prior to
joining the Group, she worked for Adler Planetarium in Chicago, US. Ms.
Wong joined the Group in September 2000.

Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter, aged 43 cPA

Company Secretary

Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter, aged 43, was appointed as Company Secretary
and Qualified Accountant of the Group. Mr. Li is responsible for Group
accounting and corporate finance of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in accountancy. He
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked for an international accounting and
audit firm, for 8 years and a Hong Kong listed company as a financial
controller and company secretary for 4 years.
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group*) for the period ended 30 June 2008.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Company’s
principal activities during the period.

The results of the Group for the period ended 30 June 2008 are set out
on page 37 of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend in
respect of the period ended 30 June 2008. No interim dividend has
been paid by the Company during the period.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share option
during the year, together with the reasons for such movements, are set
out in notes 35 and 36 to the financial statements respectively.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.
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Related party transactions entered by the Group during the period
ended 30 June 2008, which do not constitute connected transactions
under the GEM Listing Rules are disclosed in note 43 to the financial
statements.

The Directors during the period and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Wong Yuen Yee

Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert
Mr. Wong Kwok Sing

Mr. Lam Shiu San

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles (appointed on 9 February 2004)
Mr. Lai Ying Sum (appointed on 3 March 2006)

Mr. Cheng King Hung (appointed on 16 May 2007)

Ms. Ho Chui Yin, Liwina (resigned on 16 May 2007)

In accordance with Bye-laws 86 and 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms.
Wong Yuen Yee, Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, Mr. Wong Tak Leung and Mr.
Cheng King Hung will hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting; Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert, Mr. Lam Shiu San and Mr. Lai
Ying Sum will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Each of Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, Mr. Lam Shiu San
and Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert, all of whom are executive Directors,
has entered into a service contract with the Company. Each service
contract is two years and a half duration commencing on 1 April 2002
and shall continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than three months’ prior written notice expiring not
earlier than the date of expiry of the said initial fixed term of two years.
As at the date of this report, none of these service contracts have been
terminated by either party.
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No service contract has been entered into between the Company
and the Independent Non-Executive Directors. However, the Board
has approved the statutory compensation of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors on 31 March 2008 and payable on or before 30
June 2008.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors has entered into any service
agreements with any member of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the
financial statements.

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 12 to 15 of this annual report.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the period or at any time during the year.

The Company has received from each of Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles,
Mr. Cheng King Hung and Mr. Lai Ying Sum an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company still considers the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.
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(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme®) adopted on 5 July 2002, the principal terms of
which were set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 30
July 2002 (the “Prospectus”), there were 24,000,000 share options
granted to the grantees. Up to 30 June 2008, 17,520,000 share
options have been exercised and 1,680,000 share options have
been lapsed. The remaining 4,800,000 share options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will lapse on 4 July 2012. Details of
which were as follow:

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
asat
1 April 2007 Granted Exercised
Dateof R-EE+E during during
grant A-H the period the period
RitiBH AT HrRd BrfTE
Directors 5 July 2002 9,600,000 - 9,600,000
£ “TZ-_E+ATA
Employees 5 July 2002 12,720,000 - 7,920,000
E& —TE-5+ATA
Total
et 22,320,000 - 17,520,000

Details of the Pre-IPO share options granted to certain Directors
are stated in page 23 of this report.
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(i)

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the sole shareholder
of the Company on 5 July 2002, the Company conditionally
adopted the share option scheme, the principal terms of which
are set out in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus (“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme®).
Up to 30 June 2008, there were 170,222,940 share options
granted to the grantees and 99,432,440 shares options under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme have been exercised and no
options has been cancelled. The remaining 10,500 share options
(exercise price HK$0.22), 1,000,000 share options (exercise price
HK$0.114) and 69,780,000 share options (exercise price HK$0.63)
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will lapse on 5 January
2014, 19 September 2015 and 22 August 2017 respectively.
Details of which were as follows:

Number of share options
BREZA
Outstanding
as at
1 April 2007 Granted Exercised
Dateof R-BELE during during
grant A-H the period the period
RitiAH WA AR bl
Directors 6 January 2004 9,514,000 - 9,514,000
% “EEME-ARA
20 September 2005 11,600,000 - 11,600,000
“ETRENAZTA
23 August 2007 - 34,720,000 -
ZEREN\AZT=H
Employees 6 January 2004 7,146,000 - 7,135,500
=] —ZZNE-R<A

(ii)
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EZTEN\FARNA=ZTHAL KRR T
£ A 170,222,940 17 & IR # & & 99,432,440 13
BARAAFREREBERESIET 2 BRIEET
- WHEBRECH N - B R AHEREER
REET 82 #2T10,50017 BE AL (1715 (8 50.2248
JC) ~ 1,000,00017 i B # (1752 1& &0.11487T)
1269,780,00017 FE A& #E (171 (8 R0.63% 7T) 5
AN —_ZE—MFE—ARHE - —E—RHFNAA+AI
AE-—Z—+tFNA-+-HXK - BREFED
T

Outstanding
asat

30 June Exercise
Lapsed 2008 price
during R-ZBENE per share
the period ~AZtH Option period R
TP HRTE BREDR ¥E
- - 6 January 2004 to HK$0.22
5 January 2014 02287

B-TTMF-AAAE

—Z-E-ATA
- - 20 September 2005t0  HK$0.114
19 September 2015 0114587

BEZZTRFNAZTAE

ZE-RENATAR
- 34,720,000 23 August 2007 to HK$0.63
22 August 2017 0.63%TT
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(i) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) i) BRAHEREHEKRESE @
Number of share options
BREHA

Outstanding

Outstanding asat
asat 30 June Exercise
1 April 2007 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2008 price
Dateof RN-ZE+E during during during RZZENE per share
grant mA—-H the period the period the period ~AZ1H Option period R
RitiAH HARITR R BT AP W AT BRESR 8
20 September 2005 5,400,000 - 4,400,000 - 1,000,000 20 September 2006t0  HK$0.114

—ETRERA-+A 19 September 2015 0.114% 7
BEZZZRFAA-TAE
—Z-nEAATAR

23 August 2007 - 74,340,000 39,280,000 - 35,060,000 23 August 2007 to HK$0.63
S AV 22 August 2017 0.63%TT
ZET+E\AZ+=R%
ZE—tEN\AZTZH
26 October 2007 - 8,777,940 8,777,940 - - 26 October 2007 to HK$0.466
S 2 B = 250ctober 2017 0.466/57T
BZERHETAZTABE
“E—+E+A-TRA
Total
izt 33,660,000 117,837,940 80,707,440 - 70,790,500

Details of the Post-IPO share options granted to certain Directors — # T & TE =2 BIX AR EREEIRE 2 S ESH N
are stated in pages 24 to 25 of this report. HEE24E258 o

FI



As at 30 June 2008, the interests or short position of the Directors in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV and Section 347 of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO); or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or as required, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange are as follows:

(@) Interests in the Company

Personal Family
Name of Director Interests Interests
B3 A ARz RikER
Ms. Wong Yuen Yee (note 1)
'R L (H5E1) 95,178,500 -
Mr. Wong Kwok Sing (note 1)
BEELE (WiF1) 7,678,500 -
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert (note 1)
HRRAE (M) 85,178,500 -
Mr. Lam Shiu San (note 1)
WIS AE (HsE1) 6,018,500 -
Mr. Cheng King Hung
BRBEE 700,000 -
Notes:

1. The 97,362,000 Shares are held by Multiturn Trading Limited, which
is beneficially owned as to 31.21%, 30.9%, 30.9% and 6.99% by
Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, Mr. Wong Yao Wing,
Robert and Mr. Lam Shiu San, respectively. Accordingly each of Ms.
Wong Yuen Yee, Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert
and Mr. Lam Shiu San is deemed to be interested in the 97,362,000
Shares held by Multiturn Trading Limited under the SFO.

RZZEZNFANA=Z+H - EERARDQ RS0
EE(ERAEHZRERA(TESRBEGEDE
XVER) 2 Bcfn - BRI REESS - HEREEFR
HIERGIEXVERET R E8D BN E34TIRAME AR
BN ERTORR (BREREREESF IR
GROIBRE R MR ER B R 2 AR )
AR RE 75 N BB (6 01| 58 362 {6 3R FE R RC A RZ IR B AR
BERMZERIAR + HIRBEAIER ETRANE
BABERS.67TIHRREEMEFTETESFRIMANE
RRAR R PrZ s SORRIAT

(a) REQTFzHEH

Number of ordinary shares held

g BEREA
Percentage
of the
Company’s
issued
share capital
Corporate Other  Aggregate EEAT
Interests Interests Interests BRTRA
DEER Hifgs b £ ZBEDH
97,362,000 - 192,540,500 15.69%
97,362,000 - 105,040,500 8.56%
97,362,000 - 182,540,500 14.87%
97,362,000 - 108,380,500 8.42%
- - 700,000 0.06%

Biat -

1. 797,362,000A% % {5 B3 Multiturn Trading Limited
A ZARDRBERR LT ERELAE
BB ERMKL TEEEZHEF31.21%
30.9% - 30.9% % 6.99%#m - Bt - BIFFH
REEED - Ssmiat  EEELE - &
8RS0 A e Ik 22 5t HE 4 AR A B Multiturn Trading
Limited 78 2 97,362,000 A% ) Fh B 125 ©

EAIZRAER A A



(@)

(b)

Interests in the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed, as at 30 June 2008, none of Directors or chief
executives of the Company has any interests or short position in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or are
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or as required, pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions
by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Details of the share options granted to certain Directors pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 30 June 2008 are as
follows:

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
asat
1 April 2007 Granted Exercised
Dateof R-EEtE during during
grant A-H the period the period
BLinH R MR L Mk
Ms. Wong 5 July 2002 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
YuenYee —ZTT-F+AHA
EMRTL
Mr. Wong 5 July 2002 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
KwokSing —EZ-F+ARA
Mr. Wong 5 July 2002 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
YaoWng, —ZZ-Ft+ARH
Robert
Mr. Lam 5 July 2002 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
ShuSan  —ZTT-4+tATA
ML E
Total
Bt 9,600,000 - 9,600,000

FIH

(a)

(b)

RARQ T 2 m)

BETHEEEI  R_ZEZEN\FA=Z1+H EF
AR T 2 ITIRABEBEE R AR B sk (T (T AR EES
E(E&AESMBEEMIEXVE) 25 - 18
R REHTF - %Eﬁ% B 5 MBI EIEG 5
XV*B%WSZ%S’M SN /NN R ol
(RS A R (DIERIE RS & (50 A 1
Xﬁﬁﬁﬁ%“%%ﬁZ%‘WMF) AR IE

LA 1\m1§U%3521‘m%§i2\.:E)\E%I*W‘Jﬁﬁ?a
;LHEHﬁZEﬁ*E KR IARBBIFR LR

W%5%i%5whﬁmﬁﬁ§$xﬁ %x%

MmAME AR X (AR TORE ©
R0 B 5 IR A B AR R T )

BE_ZZN\FAA=TH REHERLHER
RIBRERT B TR TES ZBRUER BT ¢

Outstanding
asat

30 June Exercise
Lapsed 2008 price
during R-ZENE per share
the period ~AZTH Option period SR
BRAN R BREDR e
- - 5 July 2002 to HK$0.28
4 July 2012 0.28/7T

BZZZ-FtARAE

“T-—%#+ANA
- - 5 July 2002 to HK$0.28
4 July 2012 0.28/87T

B-EZ-FtARAZE

“T-—%£+AlA
- - 5 July 2002 to HK$0.28
4 July 2012 0.28/87C

E —_ 7 ? —E’tﬂ ﬁ H x

“T-—%F+ANA
- - 5 July 2002 to HK$0.28
4 July 2012 0.28/7T

BE-ZZ-_F#+ARHZE

“E——FtAmA



(c) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
Details of the share options granted to certain Directors pursuant
to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 30 June 2008 are as

follows:
Date of
grant
RitBH
Ms. Wong 6 January 2004
Yuen Yee “EEME-ARH
BfiR T
20 September 2005
“ZERENA-TH
23 August 2007
“ER+E/\AZt=A
Mr. Wong 6 January 2004
Kwok Sing “ZTENE-A5A
EEELE
20 September 2005
“ERRENAZTA
23 August 2007
ZETHE\AZT=H
Mr. Wong 6 January 2004
Yao Wing, —ZTNFE-FA
Robert
BhAREE

20 September 2005
“ZTRENAZTH

23 August 2007
“ZTtE/\RZt=H

Outstanding
asat

1 April 2007
R-BBLE
A-H

W AATHE

2,378,500

2,900,000

2,378,000

2,900,000

2,378,500

2,900,000

(c)

BRLMEREERETS
BE_TT)N\FRA=1TH BEE
BEREERTETES ZBREZFHBD

T~
Number of share options
BREHE

Outstanding
asat
30 June
Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2008
during during during RZZEENEF
the period  theperiod  the period ~AZtH
MR Hn{TH HRER H R
- 2,378,000 - -
- 2,900,000 - -
7,930,000 - - 7,930,000
- 2378500 - -
- 2,900,000 - -
7,930,000 - - 7,930,000
- 2,378,000 - -
- 2,900,000 - -
7,930,000 - - 7,930,000

Option period
BREDR

6 January 2004 to

5 January 2014
ZEEME-ARRE
“T-MmE-ALA

20 September 2005 to
19 September 2015
ZTRENAZTHE
ZZ-RENATAR

23 August 2007 to

22 August 2017
EZZStE\AZ+=AHZE
“Z-tE\AZtZH

6 January 2004 to

5 January 2014
B-FEME-ARAE
—F-mF-A%A

20 September 2006 to
19 September 2015
“ETRENAZTAE
ZZ-RENATAR

23 August 2007 to

22 August 2017
EZZZHE\AZTZHE
ZE—+E\AZTZH

6 January 2004 to

5 January 2014
BZFEME-ARAE
“T-MmE-ALA

20 September 2005 to

19 September 2015
BE-ZTRFNA-TRE
—E-REAATAR

23 August 2007 to

22 August 2017
EZZZtE\AZ+=HZE
“E—tENAZTZH

RNFER

Exercise
price

per share
ST
e

HK$0.22
0.22787C

HK$0.114
0.114%T1

HK$0.63
063ET

HK$0.22
02257

HKS0.114
0.1147

HK$0.63
0.63 T

HK$0.22
0.22787C

HK$0.114
0.114%71

HK$0.63
063ET

EAIZRAER A A



(c) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Mr. Lam
Shiu San
RS E

Mr. Wong
Tak Leung
Charles

IEREE

Mr. Lai
Ying Sum
RERTE

Mr. Cheng
King Hung
Ly

Total
a5t

Date of
grant
Riti A&

6 January 2004
—ZZME-RRA

20 September 2005
Sy =

23 August 2008
ZER\ENAZt=H

23 August 2007
~ET+EN\A-128

23 August 2007
—ET+EN\A-1=8

23 August 2007
~ET+EN\A-+=8

FI

Outstanding
as at

1 April 2007
R-ZRLE
A-H
AT

2,378,000

2,900,000

21,114,000

Number of share options
BREHE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed

during during during
the period  the period  the period
R BiTE HBRXH

- 2,378,000 -

2,900,000 -

7,930,000 - =

1,000,000 - -

1,000,000 = =

1,000,000 = -

34,720,000 21,114,000

Outstanding
asat

30 June
2008
RZBENE
~A=tH
AT

7,930,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

34,720,000

(c) BRLAHMEREBERETE @)

Option period
BRESR

6 January 2004 to

5 January 2014
E-ZTNMF-A/EE
—“ZF-mF-ARA

20 September 2005 to

19 September 2015
BZEZRENA-THE
ZZ-RENATAA

23 August 2007 to

22 August 2017
B-ZZtFN\AZT=AZE
“Z—t5\A=tZH

23 August 2007 to

22 August 2017
BZZZtFNAZT=AZE
i AV ey

23 August 2007 to

22 August 2017
B-ZZtFNAZT=AZE
i AV ey

23 August 2007 to

22 August 2017
B-ZZtFN\AZT=AZE
“Z—+E\A=ZtZH

Exercise
price

per share
Bk
8

HK$0.22
0.22%7

HKS0.114
0.114A7

HK$0.63
063&7

HK$0.63
063E7

HK$0.63
063E7

HK$0.63
063E7



(0

G)

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2008, none of the
Directors or their associates as well as the chief executives of
the Group had any interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by the Directors as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. During
the reporting period, there were no debt securities issued by the
Group.

Directors’ and chief executives’ rights to acquire Shares
or debt securities

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2008, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities, including
debentures, of the Company or any other corporation, and neither
the Directors and chief executives of the Company, nor any of their
spouse or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

(c)

(d)

BRAHERBERETE @)

M EXFTHEEEN R )N\FAA=TH "
FEYAREIHEATURKER 2 THREEM
AR R B R E AR EE (E & R E S5 M E
EIEBIEXVED) 2D RAEERDT - #EER
AFEH M EIEFIFEI525R T BT E 2 EM
ZEAERIORE  IBEAIZEIR ETARAE
5462 F5. 67K EERETESRRR S ZHEEM
EAMEARR B MR AR SA R o TR
LHIE  AREBERITERES

ESRTHARBEROIEBR S 2#
il

B EXPIEEIN  RZBENFRA=TH
ARBREAEMMNERRBESEEALY - &
FEZRERBEARARREMEMEABREZ
B EES (BRESF) MER - IFEEFE
ERARBITHARIRE ZREBHTNRAT
ZFLRA N REARREH 2 MEFRETT
EERRERER -

EAIZRAER A A



Save as disclosed hereunder, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company is aware of any person who has any interests or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO; or are required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
1o be entered in the register referred to therein; or are required, pursuant
to Section 324 of the SFO, to notify the Company and the Stock
Exchange; or who is expected, directly or indirectly, to be interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of
the Group as 30 June 2008:

BT XAAREES  REFHARRITHRARAA
RZZFZNFRA=TH » SEATRRO HAEHEK
DFRHERAREEZESRPEROIEXVEEE2RE3DEZ
EXAMARBRE 2 amgAkR - JREES I
B 15115 3365 R E AR A IEDI s it s Rz
78 75 R B 1R DI S8 324 IR ZA A& AN R I Bt 52 P 2
BIAR - HEHERABEEEFHETRAEER
TERAEETAKERARRRAS EREZEMNZE
AR A {ES % TIA EHEE

Percentage of

Name Number of shares shareholdings
v RHEE BRESL
Multiturn Trading Limited (Note 1) Multiturn Trading Limited (#7327) 97,362,000 7.93%
Ms. Wong Yuen Yee EHR LT 95,178,500 7.76%
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert EHEREE 85,178,500 6.94%

Notes:

1. Multiturn Trading Limited is beneficially owned as to 31.21%, 30.9%,
30.9% and 6.99% by Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, Mr.
Wong Yao Wing, Robert and Mr. Lam Shiu San, respectively, all of whom
are executive Directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2008, the Directors are not
aware of any other person who had interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

FIH

Wit

1. Multiturn Trading Limited B & #1528 221 « EEIE LA -
ERRTERMKLTEBARTES) DRIERE
A31.21% ~ 30.9% * 30.9% }6.99% 5 ©

B EXFREESN  RZBBN\FRA=+H  %E
S BEEAEMATHEETHENREZES R
HIE (51 S5 336 16 AR E 17 B < B Re it 2 Bt S B Bk
P2 AEMREREIOAR



Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 30 June 2008 are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements.

Details of convertible notes of the Group are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company does not have any
sponsor, the previous sponsor’s agreement has expired on 31 March
2005.

None of the directors or the management shareholders or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the
Company had an interest in a business which causes or may cause any
significant competition with the business of the Group.

The Company and a subsidiary of the Group are defendants in a legal
action involving the alleged default on the payment of one installment
payment to the plaintiff. The said subsidiary of the Group had acquired
certain intellectual property in 2004 with consideration payable by
quarterly installments and the Company is a guarantor.

The plaintiff is claiming for the amount of HK$2,550,000, being the full
remaining balances of the consideration payable to the plaintiff in June
20086, together with interest thereon and cost. The Group settled the
disputed installment payment as well as the subsequent installments
which were due for repayment from time to time. The remaining
balance of the consideration payable of HK$550,000 to the plaintiff as
at 30 June 2008 had already been included in the Group’s unaudited
consolidated balance sheet.

The directors of the Company, based on legal advice, consider that
the action will remain pending for a while but it can be successfully
defended and therefore no further provision will be required.

Save as disclosed above, no member of the Group is engaged in any
litigation or arbitration or claim of material importance and no litigation or
claim of material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened by or against any member of the Group.

ARAFMBRAFTR-ZEZENFANAZTHZFHBIHR
WIS RERMIZETS ©

REE 2 AR R B BN M SRR ES4

BEREAITHY - ARRABEMRBA < £ATZ
REAGZENR _-_ZZRF=R=+—HEH -

ARREEREEBRRAMEEBZHEALCE
ERAFRETRUDBERN G AREREER KA
EEBREABF ZXBH R ER -

ZIK/AET&ZIKEI—%MTEQEJ%}& TR W
EHRRREER 0 B - $’§IZWE"
ﬁﬁé_zzﬂiﬁﬁk?é?%ﬂ?&ﬁﬁ BRARERE
A MARBRERA -

[RERESFE2,550,00087C * IR T ZRFNA
ENREZ2HRESRE  EREGHEMNEREE - K
EEDEETFE Y OBMFIEL R HETE T BEER
ZHEFE - R_TEEN\FAA=Z+TH BENREEZ
REEES50,0008 L EFF ALK E 2 REFZEA
BERER -

ARFEERR  REBEZEER - BRAFAKESHE
B-REM - EARE - WERE - T ELRE
e

B EXHEEIN  AEEKEARBESREMNER

FFEA PR R - ARESERA - BEEARAK
FRRINARBRIE AR E MK E R RBKREE
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The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the period.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the period.

The Company established an audit committee on 5 July 2002 with
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28, 5.29 and 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The audit committee currently comprises Mr. Wong
Tak Leung, Charles, Mr. Lai Ying Sum and Mr. Cheng King Hung who
are the Independent Non-Executive Directors. The primary duties of
the audit committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control systems of the Group. The Group’s audited
results for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2008 have been reviewed
by the audit committee, which is of the opinion that the audited
consolidated financial statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, the GEM Listing Rules and legal requirements in Hong Kong
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, PCP CPA Limited, is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the GEM Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
Wong Yuen Yee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 September 2008

FIH

AR B BB S A B AR AD © AR R SEAES
HEBARIMERHABERHEEMARE RN
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The Company recognizes that establishment and implementation of
good corporate governance standards helps the group to achieve
its corporate objectives and fulfill the expectations of shareholders
and stakeholders effectively. Therefore, the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) of the Company, with effect from 1 April 2005 has fully applied
the principles and complied with the requirements of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15
to the GEM Listing Rules:

(1) Due to the practical reasons, 14 days advance notifications
have not been given to all meetings of the board. Reasonable
notifications have been given in respect of those meetings of
the board where it is not practicable to give 14 days advance
notification. The board will use its best endeavours to give 14 days
advance notifications of board meeting to the extent practicable.
(Code Provisions A.1.1 and A.1.3);

As at the date of this report, we have no formal guidelines for
employees dealings in securities (Code Provision A.5.4) although
a formal guideline has been adopted for directors. Actions will be
taken by the board to formalize the circumstances under which
employees can deal in the shares of the Company before end of
the current financial year;

Actions have yet taken to review the internal control systems of
the Group. The Board plans to engage an external auditor to
undertake the review before end of the current financial year and
to take appropriate course of action in this regard based on the
recommendation of the external auditor (Code Provision C.2.1);
and

No formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board and those
delegated to the management has been adopted by the Group
although there are guidelines for the responsibilities and duties
of members of the board and members of the managements
taking up different position. The Board has delegated their Human
Resources Department to prepare the formal schedule for the
approval of the board before the end of the current financial year
(Code Provision D.1.2).

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors. All Directors confirmed that they complied with the
required standards as set out in the Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the period.

ARBRR - HIERETRIEFEEERTE  BYA

SEEMERCEXBRIENBRREEBEHEE AR

=

At ARFEFE((EEE B _TTRFN
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company currently comprises:
Executive Directors: Ms. Wong Yuen Yee

Mr. Wong Kwok Sing

Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert
Mr. Lam Shiu San

Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles
Mr. Lai Ying Sum
Mr. Cheng King Hung

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company.
It also oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and
directions, and performances. The management was delegated the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the general management
of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to other committees. Further details of the committees
are set out in this report.

The Board has four scheduled regular meetings at quarterly interval and
meets as and when required. During the period ended 30 June 2008,
the Board held 4 regular meetings. The attendance of each Director at
the board meetings during the period are as follows:

Directors

5=

Ms. Wong Yuen Yee Eb e
Mr. Wong Kwok Sing =R LA
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert ERREE
Mr. Lam Shiu San IR
Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles* TR A
Mr. Lai Ying Sum* BREIRST A
Mr. Cheng King Hung* B S IE S

*  Independent Non-Executive Directors

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary of the Company.
Draft and final versions of the Board minutes are sent to the Directors
for their comments and records, in both cases within a reasonable time
after the meeting.

The Directors are entitled, upon the reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice under appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses, in order to discharge their responsibilities and
duties.

Annual Report 07/08 2§
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ARREEEHRFH TIIKBAEK :

HITEE - BE@mRLL
BEREE
EHhEREE
MK SEE

BUHNTEE - IRRALE
RERSE
BRBEE

EXeRARENERARAZER  UEEAEE
ZEB ORREFAREERR - EEEREZER
MHENREE  ZEEAEEEREEEE - I &
FENAMHEMEZEBERASREL -RFLREG2E
—FHBERARE -

EFeEHBRTHAERER  I8FE—R I
EFEREH RBE_ZTN\FA=THILH
B EEQERRTHAEAEH - SEFNAHHER
HEEFEERIREWT

Number of attendance

HEIRE

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

* BUHPITEE
EESeRLERARRZRARNERT - EFEE

REBZEREERANERRAEREARRE
= UHEERFROEERFE -

EXARAEENR  AREEEBL TISRBULER
BR - AREBERAARRIXN  UWEREFBEITERER
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To ensure the compliance with the new CG Code, the role of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company has segregated
since IPO of the Company. Currently, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are Ms. Wong Yuen Yee and Mr. Wong Kwok
Sing respectively.

The Chairman’s and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility is to
manage the Board and the Group’s day-to-day business, respectively.

The three Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company are
persons of high calibre, with academic and professional qualifications
in the field of accounting and law. With their solid experience, they can
provide strong support to perform their duties delegated by the Board
effectively.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are considered to be
independent by the Board as the Board received from each of the
annual confirmation of independence as required by the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company did not have a Remuneration Committee. However, we
have planned to set up the Committee in next financial year to meet the
requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments of the Company is set out in the
note 10 to the financial statements.

The Company has no fixed terms of appointment of Independent
Non-Executive Directors. However, they are appointed subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of the Bye-laws.
Such practice deviates from the provision A.4.1 of the CG Code which
requires that Non-executive Directors be appointed for a specific term.
The Board has discussed and concluded that the current practice
of appointing Independent Non-Executive Directors without specific
terms but otherwise subject to rotation and re-election by shareholders
was fair and reasonably, and does not intend to change the current
practice at the moment. According to the Bye-Laws, Independent Non-
Executive Directors are subject to re-election once every three years.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS
For the period ended 30 June 2008, PCP CPA Limited, the existing
external auditors received the following remuneration:

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &4 &

SNEE R BUED
BE-TT/N\FAASTALSHE  REINSZEED
BREERGHNEHEAERA KR TIIBE :

2008 2007
e e

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT THETT

Annual audit services FEEZRS

920 460

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is entrusted with an overall responsibility of devising the
Company’s system of internal controls and conducting an annual
review of its effectiveness. This ensures that the Board oversees and
monitors the Group’s overall financial position so that the interests of
the shareholders are well protected and covered. The system of internal
controls covers the areas of financial, operational, compliance and risk
management of the Group’s business.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling of and
dissemination of price-sensitive information:

—  the Group is fully aware of its obligations under the GEM Listing
Rules;

— the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guide
on Disclosure of Price-sensitive Information” issued by the Stock
Exchange; and

— through channels such as financial reporting and public
announcements, the Group has implemented and disclosed its
policy on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusionary
distribution of information to the public.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company, namely Ms Wong Tak Leung,
Charles as the Chairman and Mr. Lai Ying Sum and Mr. Cheng King
Hung as the members, who among themselves posses management
experience in the accounting and law. The attendance of each member
at the meeting during the period set out as follows:

BREEY
ERZAGRBRAR TR REFFNTERA
o FRREERER  MBEREERBSBREE
RME - EEEGH AR ERREIREH © SR
BRASRIEE R RN RBEIINT

Number of

attendance

HERE

Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles (Chairman) TERRAEE(FE) 4/4
Mr. Lai Ying Sum e A 4/4

Mr. Cheng King Hung (appointed on 16 May 2007)

Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by a duly appointed
Secretary of the meeting. Draft and final versions of minutes of the Audit
Committee meetings are sent to all members of the committee for their
comments and records, in both cases within a reasonable time after the
meeting.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly results, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and
practices but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the
GEM Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the review of the
Company’s quarterly, interim and annual reports.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Inno-Tech
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 37 to 124, which comprises
the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 30 June 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
period from 1 April 2007 to 30 June 2008, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit, and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
June 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the period from
1 April 2007 to 30 June 2008 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PCP CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 September 2008

Chua Suk Lin, vy
Practising Certificate No.: P02044
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEBEER

For the period from 1 April 2007 to 30 June 2008 B —ZEZ+FMA—BE-_TF)\FNA=+ A I-HHE

Note
Mzt

Turnover =] 6
Cost of sales SHERA
Gross profit EH
Other revenue HA 7
Other net income H A AT 7
Marketing and promotion expenses MEHEREEHRY
Administrative expenses THHX
Finance costs B2 8(@)
Share of losses of associates BN REE
(Loss) before income tax BRETISH AT (&518) 8
Income tax FTe# 9
(Loss) attributable to equity holders MRAERFE AR (EE)
(Loss) per share Fh(EE)
— Basic (HK cents) —EAR ) 12(a)
~ Diluted (HK cents) —EH OB 12(b)

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.

MERAMBHRERZ 8D
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Period from
1 April 2007 to
30 June Year ended
2008 31 March
H=Z2LF
R—BZ&

—EENF

AA=1+H
1 AR
HK$000 HK$'000
T FBT

(0.84)

N/ATNE
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

ReEERER

At 30 June 2008 R=ZEENFRA=1H

30 June
2008
—EEN\F

AA=1H
HK$’000
FExT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E e 14
Prepaid lease payments BANAERE 15
Intangible assets B AE 16
Goodwill e 17
Interests in associates REFE DA 2w 19
Interest in a jointly controlled entity RN—RAREH|EE S 20
Loans to an associate A— KL R RIER 21(a)
Current assets REEE
Trading securities — pledged EEZS-DHER 22
Derivative financial instruments — pledged PTAESRIE - HEA
Inventories FE 23
Accounts receivables FEURAR X 24
Prepayments, deposits and other BRFIE - Rek

receivables Hofh e WK1
Loans to an associate A —REE R R ER 21(a)
Tax recoverable AR ERIE 33(a)
Pledged deposits [RECLECEED Y 25
Cash and cash equivalents HERBELEEY 26
Current liabilities RERE
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBS 28
Trade payables, accrued expenses BIRNER  BAHERR

and other payables HA e A 29
Other loans HER 30
Amounts due to directors N EEFE 21(d)
Current taxation REARIR 33(@)
Convertible notes ARREE 34

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.

MRERAHBRER 2 —8D -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet S8 B EA BEXR

Note
HisE

Net current assets REEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Bank loans and overdrafts PITERRES 28
Deferred taxation EERIE 33(b)
Convertible notes AR R 34
Net assets BEEFE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR E

Share capital N 35
Reserves e 37(a)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

30 June
2008
—BENF

ANA=1H
HK$’000
FHx

31 March

HK$'000
THT

3,812
4,976
6,055
14,843

64,151

8,602

55,549

64,151

MBBRRER_FTN\FLA-_TLBEEZSHE

September 2008 RERERR
WONG YUEN YEE WONG KWOK SING
BEHR =ER
Director Director
3 3

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
M AR Bz 2 —25 o
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Balance Sheet

EERER

At 30 June 2008 R=ZEENFRA=1H

Note
Mz

30 June
2008
—BENF

ANH=1+H
HK$’000
TR

31 March
2007
ZETRHF
ER=Er—E
HK$'000
T

Non-current assets FEREBEE

Interests in subsidiaries RHB AR 2w 18
Interests in associates AN 19
Loans to an associate A—REE DA ER 21(a)
Current assets REBEE

Derivative financial instruments — pledged PTEemIAE-BEA

Trading securities — pledged BEFESF - DR 22
Amount due from an associate FEW—RE & A B FIE 24
Prepayments and other receivables TEAS R I L A e LR TR

Loans to an associate A—KEE QA ER 218
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUTHT B A BFRE 21(b)
Pledged deposits BIEAER 25
Cash and cash equivalents HERESEEY 26
Current liabilities REBEE

Amount due to a subsidiary BN —RHERRZA 21(c)
Amounts due to directors JEEEA 21(d)
Accrued expenses and other payables ezt B A R HMER A 29
Other loan HME R 30
Convertible notes AR = 34
Net current assets REBEETE

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDEE

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
s AR IRz 2 — 35 -
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Balance Sheet EE £ &&

30 June 31 March
2008
—BENF

ANA=1H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHx FHT

Non-current liabilities FREEE

Convertible notes ARRER 34

NET ASSETS EEFE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR f#

Share capital N 35

Reserves =15 37(b) 30,132

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
September 2008

WONG YUEN YEE
b

Director
Ea

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
Mz AR BERKR s —#H -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERBER

For the period from 1 April 2007 to 30 June 2008 B —ZEZT+F M A —BE-_TF)\F A=+ A I 4

Attributable to equity holders of the company
MARERERE ARG
Retained
Employee  Convertible Capital profits
compensation notes redemption (Accumulated

Share Share reserve reserve  Contributed reserve  Exchange losses)
capital  premium k8 THhR surplus &K reserve RERH Total
A RiEE HefE SBREG BABE B EXftfE (ZdFBE) &zt
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKH000  HK$'000
TiEn TiEn T TiEn TiEn TEx TiEn TiEn TiEn

At 1 April 2006 RZZEAERA-A 6,702 24,445 1,462 442 5,625 43 - 13,854 52,573
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - - - (3,116) (8,116)
Totalrecognised income ~~ AEEE B
and expenses forthe year I 2% - - - - - - - (3,116) (3,116)
Issuance of shares BkA 1,900 13,300 - - - - - - 15,200
Shares issuance costs RiETER - (472) - - - - - - (472)
De-recognition of equity SR HEATERER
component of AR -
convertiole notes, EMBRR SRR
net of fransaction costs - - - (282) - - - 282 -
Bxchange difference REREEZ
on consolidation EizE - - - - - - (34) - (34)
1,900 12,828 - 082) - - (3) 28 14,604
At 31 March 2007 WZZ5LE-A=T-F 8602 37,273 1,462 160 5,625 43 (84) 11,020 64,151
At 1 April 2007 RZZTHEMA-R 8,602 37,018 1462 160 5,605 43 B4) 1100 64,151
Loss for the period HREE - - - - - - - (11,352) (71,352)
Total recognised income AR B
and expenses s
for the period - - - - - - - (71,352) (71,352)
lssuance of sharesand 4T AT RE
exercising options 14,682 316,181 (12,493) - - - - - 318,370
Sharesissuance costs  RIAR1TBR - (15,614) - - - - - - (15,614)
Fair value of options granted B FkiE 7 ATE - - 34,251 - - - - - 34,251
Exercise of convertile notes, 17(£ARE % -
net of transaction costs EHBZHEA 1,260 5,026 - (160) - - - - 6,126
Bchange difrenceon  FABESY
consolication ERER = = - - - - (211) - (11)
15,942 305,593 21,758 (160) - - (1) - 342,922
At30 June 2008 RZZFS\ERA=TH 2454 342,806 23,220 - 5,625 43 (245) (60,332) 335,721

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
MR Rz — 5 -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

For the period from 1 April 2007 to 30 June 2008 B —ZEZ+FMA—BE-_TF)\FNA=+ A I-HHE

Period from

1 April 2007 to
30 June Year ended
2008 31 March

H=EZtF
A—RAZE
—BENE
AA=1H
LHHAR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT
Operating activities R
(Loss) before income tax BRETISBIAT(E518) (68,743) (2,245)
Adjustments for: BATIEEELAR
— Depreciation and amortisation — e REH 20,907 10,150
— Release of prepaid lease payment —BNREZREEED 232 7
— Inventories written off —FEMH - 60
- Allowances of bad debts — R 10,947 985
— Loss on disposal of subsidiaries —HEHBARERE = 10
— Share of losses of associates — B EE N RE1E 690 830
— Interest income —FIBIRA (3,465) 878)
— Share-based payments — AR AERZ S H 34,250 -
— Property, plant and equipment written off —E - B MR G - 747
— Net gain on disposal of items of property, —HEYE  BEKEREER
plant and equipment WEFEm (556) -
— Net gain on disposal of an associate —HE—REE QAN FHE (2,115) -
— Dividend income —BEUA 2) -
— Interest expense —FEZH 1,874 4,810

Operating (loss)/profit before changes in K& EE S BB

working capital 2B (FR),/%F (5,981) 14,476
Decrease in inventories FERD 12 7,734
(Increase) in accounts receivables FEUBR R (S8 0) (29,292) (7,825)
(Increase) in prepayments, deposits TBRFIE - e REAME

and other receivables Y skTE (45 0n) (88,462) (1,544)
Increase in amounts due to directors FETE B I 46,204 2,020
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, accrued & S ENEER - EAtEA R

expenses and other payables H bR zEEm, CRd) 6,530 (8,775)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #3E(FEfH) EL2RE (70,989) 11,086
Hong Kong profits tax paid BB BFER (1,167) (708)
Net cash (used in)/generated from ReEk(ER), BEcBEEE

operating activities (72,156) 10,378

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
M AR BERKR 2 —#5H -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 428 B REBR

Period from
1 April 2007 to
30 June Year ended
2008 31 March
H=22+tF 2007
A—BAZE y
—EENF
AA=t+H
1EHARS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FAT
Investing activities RETED
Loans to an associate m—REE QAT ER (12,713) -
(Increase) in trading securities — pledged CEHEERSGEM) (1,024) -
(Increase) in derivative financial instruments EEATESRTAGEM)

- pledged (170) -
Interest received BEUFIE 3,465 878
Decrease in pledged deposits BHEAETON = 12,000
Payment for purchase of items of property, BEWE BMELREER 2R

plant and equipment (22,027) (4,002)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BEETEEZNR (65,760) (8,902)
Payment for prepaid lease payments B TEEFE (34,545) -
Proceeds from disposals of land and buildings % + it RAEF 1S HIE 6,713 -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate, HE—REEARAMSHIEA -

net of cash 2REe 27 3,478 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash and WEEMB AT - DB EER S

cash equivalents acquired LIRS EED 38 (1,516) -
Net cash (used in) investing activities REZEH(EH)2HLRE (124,099) (26)
Financing activities BMEED
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid BRI BT ER S BRI = (814)
Net proceeds from issuance of new shares  B(TI&(D 2 P15 F0E 558 243,788 14,727
Interest paid EAFE (1,858) (4,808)
Proceeds from new bank loans HERITERZ TS 5E = 1,000
Repayment of other loans BB HAME R (5,150) (3,345)
Repayment of bank loans BIBBITER (4,960) (2,096)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid B RARERSF BB = (10)
Net cash generated from RMEFEFAEZ

financing activities BEFHE 231,820 4,654
Net increase in cash and RERALZEY

cash equivalents BN 35,565 15,006
Effect of foreign exchange EryE (220) 10
Cash and cash equivalents at B/ EAZHER

beginning of the period/year BEZEY (2,877) (17,893)
Cash and cash equivalents B,/ ERzAER

at end of period/year BEZEY 26 32,468 (2,877)

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
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BrEE SRR MY EE

For the period from 1 April 2007 to 30 June 2008 8 —Z T+ FMA—HE-TT \FXA =+ A H

Inno-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Bermuda on 19 November 2001 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The shares
of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and Room
903 Tung Wai Commercial Building, 109-111 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18.

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued
a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years presented
as a result of these developments. However, as a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures and
the amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:
Capital disclosures, there have been some additional disclosures
provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements
include expanded disclosure about the significance of the Group’s
financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising
from those instruments, compared with the information previously
required to be disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation. These disclosures are provided
throughout these financial statements, in particular in note 40.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of capital
and the Group’s and the Company’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing capital. These new disclosures are set out
in note 39.
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B ER AR M

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have any
material impact on the classification, recognition and measurement
of the amounts recognised in the financial instruments.

Accounting Standards, Amendments and Interpretations
that are not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new standards,
amendments and interpretations that have been issued but are
not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these standards, amendments or interpretations will
have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements

HKAS 23 (Amendment) Borrowing costs

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate
financial statements

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based payment — vesting
conditions and cancellations

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 12 Service concession arrangements
HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 13 Customer loyalty programmes

HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 ~ HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined
benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction

HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 15  Agreements for the construction of
real estate

HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 16 Hedges of a net investment in
a foreign operation
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out in note 4.

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect that application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only the period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or area where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The Group’s financial year end date has been changed from
31 March to 30 June. The financial statements in current
period covered a period from 1 April 2007 to 30 June
2008 and are not entirely comparable to the comparative
amounts (which covered a period of twelve months from 1
April 2006 to 31 March 2007) for the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement and the notes to financial
statements thereon.

The Group has engaged in the provision of hotel
management services and own and management of hotel
assets in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
PRC subsidiaries of the Group have financial year end of 31
December annually, the directors considered that it would
be administratively more efficient and convenient for these
PRC subsidiaries to prepare the Group’s audit for the year
end 30 June instead of 31 March when personnel of such
subsidiaries are busily engaged in the annual business license
verification. In addition, the directors also considered that
costs could be saved as a result of the change in financial
year end.

Basis of consolidation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the period from
1 April 2007 to 30 June 2008 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled entities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
period are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. Minority interests are presented
in the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the period
between minority interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interests in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any
further losses applicable to the minority, are charged against
the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated to all such
profits until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed
by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries
and amounts due from subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 4(k)). The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or Company
and other parties, where the contractual arrangement
establishes that the Group or Company and one or more of
the other parties share joint control over the economic activity
of the entity.
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(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

(e)

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity
is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method and is initially recorded at cost
and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the associate’s or the jointly controlled
entity’s net assets. The consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the associates and jointly controlled entities for the
year.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or the jointly controlled entity. For the purpose, the
Group’s interest in the associate or the jointly controlled entity
is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and jointly controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associate or jointly controlled entity, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in associates
and jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 4(k)). The results of the associates
and jointly controlled entities are accounted by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity over the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.
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Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 4(k)). In respect of
associates or jointly controlled entities, the carrying amount of
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate or jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an associate or a jointly
controlled entity during the year, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at cost, which is their transaction price unless fair value can
e more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets.

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends or
interest earned on these investments.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
charged immediately to profit or loss.
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(h) Property, plant and equipment

()

(i)

(i)

Valuation

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 4(k)).

Subsequent expenditure relating to a property, plant and
equipment that has already been recognised is added
to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset,
will flow to the Group. All other subsequent expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Depreciation
Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being 50 years.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of other
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Equipment 5 years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Disposals

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the estimated net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

()

(i)

(i)

Valuation

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and
with finite useful lives are stated in the balance sheets
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 4(K)).

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after
its purchase or its completion is recognised as an
expense when it is incurred unless it is probable that
this expenditure will enable the asset to generate future
economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed
standard of performance and this expenditure can be
measured and attributed to the asset reliably. If these
conditions are met, the subsequent expenditure is
added to the cost of the intangible asset.

Amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives as follows:

Patents and trademarks 15 years
Computer software 5 years
Disposals

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
an asset and are recognised in the income statement
when the asset is de-recognised.
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Leased assets

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.

Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following items may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have been
decreased:

— interest in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities;

—  property, plant and equipment;
—  prepaid lease payments;
— intangible assets and

- goodwill.
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Impairment of assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

()

(i)

(il

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest Group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or Group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or Group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use,
if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net
realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debt except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Service contracts
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out in note
4(w).

Service contracts in progress at the balance sheet date are
recorded in the balance sheet at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and
progress bilings, and are presented in the balance sheet as
the “Amounts due from customers” (as an asset) or Amounts
due to customers” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress
billings not yet paid by the customers are included in the
balance sheet under “Trade debtors”.
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(0) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement.

(9]

Employee benefits

)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave
passage, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance are recognised as an
expense in the income statement as incurred.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.
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(p) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(i)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the income statement for the
year of review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

() Income tax

U

(i)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.
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(a)

Income tax (continued)

(i)

(continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.
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(a)

B ER AR M

Income tax (continued)

(i)

)

(continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value

and thereafter stated at amortized cost, except for short
term payable with no stated interest rate and the effect of
discounting being immaterial that are measured at their
original invoice amount.
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(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(t)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless
the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other
payables. Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or
losses on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
4(s) if and when (j) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (i)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.
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(u) Convertible notes

v)

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition the liability components of the convertible
notes is measured as the present value of the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognised as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the
liability component is calculated using the effective interest
method. The equity component is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to retained
profits.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortized costs with any difference between the amount
initially recognized and redemption value being recognized
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.
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(w) Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the profit or loss as
follows:

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Residential intranet and software application
design services

Revenue arising from the provision of residential intranet
and software application design services is recognised
when the underlying services are rendered, which is
estimated by apportionment over the expected duration
of each engagement, and the outcome of the contract
can be estimated with reasonable certainty.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customer which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Hotel service
Revenue is recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using effective interest method.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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(x)

(v)

@

B RS ER AR M

Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognized only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future economic activity.
The resultant asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over
its useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognized, development expenditure is recognized as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Development
expenditure previously recognised as an expense is not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

()  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

(i)  the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(i)  the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venture;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such individual, or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals;
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(20 Related parties (continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in () or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

(aa) Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
of exchange ruling at the dates of transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated at the rates of exchange
ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date when the fair
value was determined. Profits and losses arising on exchange
are dealt with in profit or loss.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
overseas operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group at exchange rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange difference arising, if any, are classified as equity
and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve. Such
translation differences are recognized as income or as
expense in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

(bb) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the
purposes of these financial statements.
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(bb) Segment reporting (continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-
group balances and transactions are between Group entities
within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on
similar terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, management
is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates, judgements and
associated assumptions are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The Group makes estimates and underlying assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

() Allowances of bad debts
Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of the
collectibility of accounts receivable from each customer. In
making its judgement, management considers a wide range
of factors such as results of follow-up procedures performed
by sales personnel, customers’ payment trend including
subsequent payments and customers’ financial position.

(i) Valuation of share options
Note 36 contains information about the assumptions relating
to the fair value of share options granted.

(bb) 7= ()

DEp WS X EE - BERAES
EEERERNZO 2 EHE REHUE
B APREZSEIEE  FlHIHE
ERBRTE  BHRKRBARDE -
REREE - oz W - X - BER
BEBREBRNQARIBMNEHREERAR
AR SRAEAGLEIRE BRE—Eo MK
EIHATET - L EEBAARBENER
ERZTIREE—DBANEEE SRR
G o 3 E8 2 P RO MBS 4R b SNSRI 1S
2 BLUERETE -

DEERF NN IE D B EE (B
BN - W IEEHE P 2% (B HA R i 22
HEZRBRA

RERAREZ @5tRRE - EEEAMEER
BB RIRIE TR < B E K B ERRE EFH #IE -
Et R - AR RIRRAER 2 BELREE
R RFFE GG - A RARRE - 28R
TRBERTE B REMHELBEBAE AR -
ERSERIEBZEEFTARTR -

REBBAREL BT RBREERRK - AEEZ
SHEFTERAERROBENERERER - R
BEEEIABREEZRAR MEMBREREEKN
HEzBARARZ BT RERFAHOT

() BEREE
REHE RS R F U E YR 2 7] BE 1
RrAELNERHE - RERHEHER - &
BEZEEIRE  fIMEEAERET
EZ#ER - BPAREBR  BIEHEZH
REEFEHFBMR

(i) HEEBERE
MizEses B EMR EBRIEATEER 2
BRRRER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R 3R M5t

6. TURNOVER 6. EHEH
Turnover represents design of residential intranet, provision of EERBRNEERPEARLME (PR &G
e-property management software application consulting services EP R - REETMEBTEEARGHAR
and trading of home-automation, provision of hotel services and % BEREEBLESR  RIEBEERSE R EAM
other products in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China Ef e B/ FRREEBERZ EEREHEN
(the “PRC”). The amount of each significant category of revenue EENT:

recognized in turnover during the period/year is as follows:

Period from

1 April 2007 to
30 June  Year ended
2008 31 March
B-22+HF 2007
A—B=%E BHE

—EE\F —TTLAF
A~A=+H =A=1+—8H
LEEARS IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHEIT

Income from design of residential intranet, REHEP AR - REXEEDLRBR
provision of home-automation services EFEHEDR KA
and trading of related products 43,236
Income from hotel services B JE RS 2 A -
43,236
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7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 7. HWAREMBAFRE

Period from

1 April 2007 to
30June  Year ended
2008 31 March
B-22+HF 2007
A—B%E HE

—EENE

AH=1+H
LEEAR
HK$000 HK$000
FEx T

Other revenue Heplr A
Bank interest income RITFBUA 878
Dividend income from listed securities KB EHESRZREBA -
Other interest income HAab RS M -
Rental income GEEALON -
Sundry income HEWA 134
1,012

Other net income Hplg A28
Net gain on disposal of an associate HE—REE QAW FE -
Net gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEKREEE

plant and equipment Wz 58 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R 3R M5t

8. (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. PBRFTSHiAT(E5E)
(Loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging: BRPTISELAT(EE) EHIBR T 5% 18 ¢

Period from
1 April 2007 to

(@) Finance costs:

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts

(a)

MBER

ANRFRNEBREEZRITER

30June  Year ended

2008 31 March
B-E2+HF 2007
A—BZE BHE

=t 1 YV

~A=+A =
110
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET Fiit

wholly repayable within five years MET A 3,224
Interest on other loans HEHF L 440
Interest on convertible notes (note 34) ARSI B (H7734) 1,136
Finance charges on obligations under MEMEREZHH I

finance leases 10

4,810
(b) Staff costs: (b) BIMA:
Contributions to defined contribution TEREE G B

plan 285
Long service payment REARRTS 13K -
Share-based payments LARRfn BERE 2 T it -
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHEMETR 6,730

7,015
Average number of employees FHEE AK 14
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8.

70

(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued)

(Loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging:

(c) Other items:

Cost of inventories

Amortisation of intangible assets

Release of prepaid lease payments

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation on owned assets

Operating lease charges in respect of
office premises

Inventories written off

Allowances of doubtful debts

Research and development costs

Property, plant and equipment written off

Fair value change on derivative
financial instruments

Fair value change on trading securities

Loss on derivative financial instruments

Loss on trading securities

Exchange loss

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

(c)

Hpigg :
FERAR

B AESN

B EESRERE

2% il
BEAEITE

MAEME LS
HEMRX

[E =

R

M RRAEKAE

EMEME - BE R&E
TEEMTAZAFEEREY

b 5 1R
HEMRBARER

BRATBEL AT (E58) @)
METSRL AT (B8 BB TAIFIE -

Period from

1 April 2007 to
30June  Year ended
2008 31 March
B-22tHF 2007
A—RAZ%E HE

—EENF _TTLF
AA=+H =A=+—H
LEEARS HFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET

17,325
7,042

460
3,108

580

60
985
826
747

The cost of sales includes written off of inventories of HK$Nil
(31 March 2007: HK$60,000) and aggregate employee benefits
expense, depreciation, amortisation of intangible assets
and operating lease charges in respect of office premises of
approximately HK$16,183,000 (31 March 2007: HK$8,962,000),
which are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed

above for each of these types of expenses.

HEXRBIETEMBETEL(ZES+LF=A
=+—H: 60,000 7T) A RIEERFMAZR
BNE BEVEAEBHERRASYEZLE
FE X 416,183,000 L (—_ET+F = A
=+—H8 :8,962,000/87T) * ILEFIBIMEDTA
FR BRI R EHEESEE -
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9. INCOME TAX 9. FRBEH

Period from
1 April 2007 to
30 June  Year ended
2008 31 March
H=2TtHF
A—HBHZ

= LI
AA=tE =
i1
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH THR

(@) Taxation in the consolidated (a) HEBEFIFRZBIEE:

income statement represents:

Current tax REABLIE
Tax for the year — Hong Kong profits tax REEHBE - BBHMEH 317
(Over)/Under-provision in respect of BAFE (BERE) BETR
prior years 77
394
Deferred tax EESE
Origination and reversal of temporary =R 7 HTE KB (H17233b))
differences (Note 33(b)) 477
871
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEMNEHRERANBEFE 2 A ERB S
16.5% (31 March 2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable AR E165%(ZETLtF=A=1+—8 :
profits for the period/year. 17.5% )B4 -
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9. |NCOME TAX (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

9. Fis®Hiw

72

accounting (loss) at applicable tax rates:

B)EZBEHR

Period from

1 April 2007 to
30 June

2008
H=ZZtHF
mA—HZ

—EENF
AA=1+H
LFHARE
HK$°000
FEx

(Loss) before income tax BRETSH AT (&1E)
Notional tax on (loss) before income tax, REMBRRERAE Y

calculated at applicable tax rates in
the respective countries
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue
Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised
Previous years’ unprovided deferred tax
(Over)/under-provision of profits tax

in prior years

BRETSTAT (B518) ZREMR

TAMB L BT E
IR AZ BRI E
RERZARBDAREBR Z METE

BEFREAARBIETEH A
BEFERSGH (BREE) BETR

Others Hid
Change in tax rate e
Actual tax expense ERHIERZ

(b) BIRMXEBEARRHE G (B

Year ended
31 March
2007

B=E
—TELEF
=R=+—H
LFE
HK$'000
TET

(2,245)

(392)
457

531
198

77
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &K M5t

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 10. EEREEREZHMS
REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration EEMe
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the BEEEATIEHE161EEE  EEMOEE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: W

Period from
1 April 2007 to
30June  Year ended
2008 31 March
B-22LHF
HA—HZ

—EENE

~NA=+H
1EEAR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Fees ok 180
Basic salaries, allowances and other benefits ERFS  2EL R EAMER] 3,714
Share-based payments LARR D B ELRE 2 -
Long service payment RHIBRIS S5k -
Retirement scheme contribution RIRETEIfHE5R 48

3,942
Number of directors BEAH 6
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 10. EEREEREZM 2w

74

REMUN ERAT'ON (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEME @
The remuneration of directors for the period from 1 April 2007 to EZEELFNMA—AE_TEN\FAA=1+H
30 June 2008 is set out below: Iz EEMeHIINT ¢

Long Retirement
Share-based service scheme
Discretionary  payments payment contribution
Fees Salary  bonuses LARfER RERE  BAGE Total

il Fe BERA BBz 3% e EoH)
Name of director HK$000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000
TiEn Tin TiEn TiEn FiEn FiEn TR

Executive directors BiTEs
Ms. Wong Yuen Yee Eiat - 3,240 - 3493 14 15 6,762
Mr. Wong Kok Sing BEBLE - 3,240 - 3493 14 15 6,762
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert ERREE - 3,240 - 3,493 19 15 6,767
Mr. Lam Shiu San ketE - 1,620 - 3493 14 15 5,142
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles TEREE 210 - - 240 - - 450
Ms. Ho Chui Yin, Liwina (3) ARET 1y - - - - - - -
Mr. Lai Ying Sum PRALE 135 - - 240 - - 375
Mr. Cheng King Hung (b) ey k) 128 - - 240 - - 368
478 11,340 - 14,692 61 60 26,626
The remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 March 2007 is HE-_ZZ+F=—A=1t—HIIFEZzEEHMs
set out below: BT -

Long  Retirement

Share-based service scheme

Discretionary ~ payments payment  contrioution

Saary  bonuses  MAERfAAR  REBRE  RMGHE

& WERL Az S iR
Name of director HK$'000 HKP000  HK$'000  HK$000
‘ TiEn AT TR A T
Executive directors BirEs
Ms. Wong Yuen Yee Bt - 960 - - - 12 972
Mr. Wong Kiwok Sing EEEEE - 1,019 - - - 12 1,081
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert it - 960 - - - 12 972
Mr, Lam Shiu San kas - 7 - - - 12 787
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles TEREE 120 - - - - - 120
Ms. Ho Chui Yin, Liwina (3) RE 1y - - - - - - -
Mr. Lai Ying Sum RERLE 80 - - - - - 60
Mr. Cheng King Hung (b) gyt - - - - - - -
180 3,714 - - - 48 3942
Note: Bzt -
(@  Resigned on 16 May 2007 (@ RZZETLFRATNHEHE
(o)  Appointed on 16 May 2007 () RZZTZTLFRATHEZME
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 10. EEREESEZHMEw
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

Individuals with highest emoluments BEHERNAL
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the five individuals TEEmFEIAT(BEESE) 2 Mo AEN
of highest emoluments (including directors) are as follows: ™~

Period from
1 April 2007 to
30June  Year ended
2008 31 March
St
A—HZ

—EENF

AA=t1H
LEHARS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT

Basic salaries, allowances and other benefits HEER#He 2R HMER] 4,026
Discretionary bonuses BYISIEAT _
Long service payment RHIBRIS S5k -
Share-based payments ARG B ELRE 2 -
Retirement scheme contribution RIREHEIBER 59

4,085
During the period, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the AEREA - ARESERNEEESFENALTS
five individuals with highest emoluments as an inducement to join RERIES - (ERTBEMAREE S IMARSE
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. B8 2 S SRR E -
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 10. EEREESEZHMEw
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

Individuals with highest emoluments (continued) BEHERA L@

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the BN AfEREESFERNALTRENR(Z
Group for the period include four (31 March 2007: four) directors TTLF=ZA=+—H ER)ES ' EfieE
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. N EX2Y 29K - iR - EffES—F
The emoluments payable to the remaining one (31 March 2007: ZEELF=ZA=+—H8: —B)ERALZEN
one) individual during the period is as follows: cap N

Period from

1 April 2007 to
30June  Year ended
2008 31 March
BB tHE 2007

MA—RAZE BE
—2BN\F —FTLH
AA=+A ZA=+—A
LB LR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T

Basic salaries, allowances and other benefits HAHS 2R R EMEN 312
Retirement scheme contribution RIREHEIGER 11
Long service payment REARRTS IS5k -
Share-based payments LARR R BERE 2 S -

323
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 10. EEREESEZHMEw
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

Individuals with highest emoluments (continued) &= FEBIA L @
The emolument of the one (31 March 2007: one) individual with Eh—Z(ZEZLF=A=+—"H: —R)&=
the highest emolument is fall within the following band: FEMNATHEN T T5EE :

Number of individual
AE

Period from

1 April 2007 to
30June  Year ended
2008 31 March

B-RELE
MA—HZ
Sl
XA=+E =

1E55

Emolument band B < &5 [E]
HK$NIl - HK$1,500,000 T 7L — 1,500,000 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T —2,000,000% 7T —

11. (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 11. KAA B RERE A B (B1E8)
THE COMPANY

The consolidated (loss) attributable to equity holders of the ARAFIREREBARGEE (BIE) BEEE
Company includes a loss of HK$48,222,000 (31 March 2007: 48,222 0008 T(ZEZTtF=A=+—H : 5
loss of HK$3,384,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 153,384,000/ 70) ERN AR Al A HRKR IR ©

statements of the Company.
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12. (LOSS) PER SHARE

78

@

(b)

Basic (loss) per share

The calculation of basic (loss) per share for the period ended
30 June 2008 is based on the loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$71,352,000 (31 March
2007: loss of HK$3,116,000) and on the weighted average
of 1,135,329,000 (31 March 2007: 369,108,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the period.

Diluted (loss) per share

No diluted (loss) per share had been presented in 31 March
2007 as the Company’s share options and the convertible
notes are anti-dilutive.

The calculation of diluted (loss) per share for the period ended
30 June 2008 is based on the loss attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of HK$71,352,000
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,138,378,000 shares, calculated as follows:

() Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

12. ER(EE)

()

(b)

BRER(EE)
BE_ZZN\FXA=THILHBEZER
EAX(BE) DEARRIRES B AELE
871,352,000 L( ZEE+F=A=+—
B : &183,116,000/8 T) R AIAE 81T
B2 N9 $01,185,329,0000 (= F
THE=ZA=+—H : 369,108,0008%) &t
%ﬁ o

sREE(ER)

RN AR R ERE R AT AR REY AR #
BIER BYEEINN_—"FTLF=HA
=t—RZEREE(ER) -

BE-_ZZ)\ERA=ZTHIHHEZER
B (F18) DIRBEA QR L mRRESE
A FE(H E5 871,352,000 7T K I 8 A% hn 4
F19881,138,378,00008:TE » stE T ¢

() BBERZIEFLIE(HE)

30 June 2008
—EENFEXA=TH

’000
TR

R-ZEENFRA=TH

at 30 June 2008 2 EBAR INAE 8L 1,135,329
Effect of deemed issue of shares under RIEAR R RIERE SR IE
the company’s share option scheme BIIR D 2 2
(note 36) (K1z#36) 3,049
1,138,378
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13. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because this
is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

(@) Business segments
The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Intelligent system: the development and sale of intelligent
home electronic application system.

Hotel management: the provision for hotel management
services.

Intelligent system
BHERS
1/4/2007 -
30/6/2008
“ERtE

mA-AZ
= 238

~A=TH =

HK$'000
T

IN\K

Segment revenue: AR -
Revenue from exteral customers ~ RESMIEF 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

TRER
PEEHNAREEB KRR AERT] - £555
BENWERTERE AR - DARLENEA
R AR IEHREE ARE -

13.

ES g
AEEB T EREB D BAK :

(a)

ESiE

o

LBREXEETEAERGHAER

i
m &

EEER  REVBEEERRE

Consolidated
RE

1/4/2006 -
31/3/2007
“ETRE
MA—-AZ WmA—RZ
“EEN\F ZTTtF
~A=+RA ZA=1+—H
HK$000  HK$'000
T THT

Hotel management
BEEE
1/4/2007 -  1/4/2006 -
30/6/2008
ERtLE
mA—BZ
ZBENF
~A=tH =A=+—H
HK$000  HK$'000
TER T

1/4/2007 -
30/6/2008
ZBERLE

1/4/2006 -
31/3/2007
“TTRE
MA—HZE
“TRLF
A=+—H
HK$'000
THEL

43,236 43,236

Segment results GECES (1,415) (1,415)
Unallocated expenses AOEHZ
Share of loss of associates B E N RIER (830)
Loss before tax BRI (2,245)
Tax IR @8r1)
Loss for the period/year attributable & AFEZHEAA

to equity holders of the parent FE(RE/F RS (3,116)
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13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 13. 2 EER @)
(@) Business segments (continued) (@) E#X5¥@m

Intelligent system Hotel management Consolidated
BHAR BEEE =28
30/6/2008  31/3/2007 30/6/2008 31/3/2007 30/6/2008 31/3

“BEN\E —TTLF —BBEN\E _TTLF —BENE

AA=tH =A=t—H AA=t+H =A=+-H RA=tH =A=
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000  HKE000
Fign BT TR TR FET T

Segment assets DIEEE 120,561 120,561
Interest in associates RSN R 2 R 4,407 4,407
Unallocated assets ROWEE

Total assets BEE 124,968
Segment liabilities SHBE

Unallocated liabiliies *oEafRE

Total liabilties BeE

Capital expenditure B/ ENEE 7 ERRY

incurred during the period/ year
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13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 13. 7 EER@®
(b) Geographical segments (b) HEDE
The Group’s business is mainly participated in Hong Kong REBEBZTEAERERPEARAMBLE
and the People’s Republic of China. 7% -
Analysis of segment revenue, assets and capital expenditure is DEWA C BEREAEIOTOT ¢
as follows:

Segment revenue:
Revenue from external
customers

Hong Kong People’s Republic of China Consolidated
&t hEARLNE )
1/4/2007 - 1/4/2006 - 1/4/2007 -  1/4/2006- 1/4/2007 -  1/4/2006 -

30/6/2008  31/3/2007  30/6/2008 31/3/2007 30/6/2008  31/3/2007
“EBLE “TTAF CERLE 23R x

—ggLE
mNA—-BE WA—-H: MWMA—-REZE = NA-RZE
“eR\E CTELE CRRNE CIILE CRRNG
AA=tH =A=t—H KRA=tH =A=+t—-B RA=t+H =A=t+-H
HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HKE000
FHn  TAT TR TER  TER TR

Other segment information:
Total assets

Capital expenditure

I
eV
2N
AHEAH
BEE 90,627 34,341 124,968
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥13% - BERRHE

The Group
558

Leasehold
improve-

Furniture Motor

82

Buildings ments and fixtures Equipment vehicle Total
BT HENELE GAREE B RE st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKE000  HKE000  HK$000
TAT AT TAT THAT THET AL
Cost: A
At 1 April 2006 RZEERENA—H 420 1,777 689 9,839 20 12,745
Additions HE - - 31 3,971 - 4,002
Write-offs s - (353) (172)  (©397) 00)  (2.942)
Exchange realignment R - - - 9 - 9
At 31 March 2007 RZEZ+E=RA=+—H 420 1,424 548 11,422 - 13,814
Additions HE 5,373 358 63 15,196 1,037 22,027
Disposal & (420) - - - - (420)
Exchange realignment B 5 AR - - 2 22 - 24
At 30 June 2008 R-BENFXA=TH 5,373 1,782 613 26,640 1,037 35,445
Accumulated depreciation SETEREE
and impairments:
At 1 April 2006 RZFLENA—AH 2 519 364 2,481 5 3,371
Charge for the year FRZHY 285 75 2,736 4 3,108
Written back on write-offs s/ &R - (353) (154) (1,679) 9) (2,195)
Exchange realignment Rk - - - 2 - 2
At 31 March 2007 RZEZ+F=fA=+—H 10 451 285 3,540 - 4,286
Charge for the period BRI 20 360 124 6,140 238 6,882
Written back on disposals &R (18) - - - - (18)
Exchange realignment Rk - - - 10 - 10
At 30 June 2008 RZBENEXA=TH 12 811 409 9,690 238 11,160
Net book value: HREHE
At 30 June 2008 R-BZNEXA=1H 5,361 97 204 16,950 799 24,285
At 31 March 2007 RZZEZ+E=R=+—H 410 973 263 7,882 - 9,528
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% - BERZRE@®
The analysis of net book value of buildings is as follows: EFREFEIFOT :

The Group
rEE
30 June 31 March
2008

—BEN\F
AA=tH =ZA=+—8H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT

In Hong Kong EES

- Long leases —REHEE 410
In the People’s Republic of China TErREE AR AEFE

— Medium-term leases —HhHEE =

410
Buildings with net book value of approximately HK$4,387,000 (31 BREFE 4,387,008 T(ZEELF= A
March 2007: HK$NIil) were pledged to a bank for a third party. =+—H: TBETIZEFERE=ZFERTR
10
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. BHHEERE

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent prepaid lease AEE 7 ENHEERIBRBE i 2 BHEER
payments on leasehold land and their net carrying value are B MEREFESTAT

analysed as follows:

The Group
rEE

30 June 31 March
2008 2007
—EENE —TTtHF
AA=+H =ZA=1+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT

Cost: 2%

At beginning of period/year 5 Y
Additions nNE
Disposals L&

At end of period/year H,/ R
Release: #m

At beginning of period/year 1,4
Release for the period/year 8,/ FRRE
Wiritten back on disposals SRR
At end of period/year H R
Net book value: BREEE !
At end of period/year H IR
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued) 15. FEFHEERE @
The analysis of net book value of prepaid lease payments is as EMNHAEREERmFESTOT ¢
follows:

The Group
rEE
30 June 31 March
2008 2007

—EB\F “TTLF
ANB=+H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHR

In Hong Kong EEE

- Long leases —RHEMEE 5,761
In the People’s Republic of China fEhEARAME

— Medium-term leases —HEE -

5,761

Prepaid lease payments with net book value of approximately BREFE 412,008,008 L (ZET+F = A
HK$12,008,000 (31 March 2007: HK$NIl) were pledged to a bank =+—8: T CENAEREERE=F
for a third party. T TIRIT o
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
The Group
REE
Patents and Computer
trademarks software Total
BRI R EE SRR st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT THET
Cost: B

At 1 April 2006 RZZETRFEA—H 4,300 31,133 35,433
Additions NE - 8,902 8,902
At 31 March 2007 R-EE+F=A=+—H 4,300 40,035 44,335
Additions = - 65,760 65,760
At 30 June 2008 R=ZBENFARA=1+H 4,300 105,795 110,095

Accumulated amortisation: REHE -
At 1 April 2006 RZEZERFONA—H 406 9,267 9,673
Charge for the year FAZH 287 6,755 7,042
At 31 March 2007 RZZEZ+F=A=+—H 693 16,022 16,715
Charge for the period G- 860 13,165 14,025
At 30 June 2008 R-ZBENFAA=1H 1,553 29,187 30,740

Net book value: BRMEFE
At 30 June 2008 R-BENEARA=1H 2,747 76,608 79,355
At 31 March 2007 RZZEZT+F=A=+—H 3,607 24,013 27,620
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17. GOODWILL

17. &

The Group
REH
30 June 31 March
2008 2007

—EB\F —TTLF
ANA=1+H =A=+—8
HK$000 HK$’000
TR FAT

Cost: B

At beginning of period/year 8 FE4)

Acquisition of subsidiary (note 38) UKt B A B (H17738)
At end of period/year B R

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) as
follows:

MEEHEREELENM ZRERR

PEERTELBMZEHENT

30 June 31 March
2008 2007
—EENE —TTHF
~NA=1+H =A=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000

Autoscale Resources Limited

FiEn T

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period, and a discount rate of 12% per annum. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period have been extrapolated using a
steady 8% per annum growth rate.

86

ReEfBfz KOS BREEBEER
H o REETARBEEECREREDLFY
BRE AR RERTF12%HREHER
He AFHRZRAERETIASR ZIBEFIEE
RIFHHES -
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost

Less: Impairment loss

FE LMD - AR

B R (EETR

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

18. RKTBR R 2=

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which

principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

Name of Company
NRER

Autoscale Resources
Limited

Shimmer Scene
Holdings Limited

Cyberliving (Hong Kong)
Co Limited
RREB(FB)BRLA

Cyberworks Technology
Limited
RREMGABERAT

EAIERERR (RN
AR

Annual Report 07/08 ]

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
BR L 26

BVI
HKBRIES

BVI
EBELES

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
Bt

People’s
Republic of
China
(the “PRC")

CEIN=S e
(THEd )

Percentage of equity

RERDL

Group’s
effective Held by the
interest Company
AEEZ HARA ]

BRED
56% 56%
100% 100%
100% =
100% =
100% =

Held by

subsidiary
=] NG

]

100%

100%

100%

TREBEIEVE

MBARZFS -

Particulars of issued/
registered capital
BB/ BRI

56 shares of US$1 each
S6IREMRMEE =TT
P <)

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIET 2’

4 shares of HK$1 each
ARRERREE BT 2 IR (D

4 shares of HK$1 each
ARRERREETE T 2 R

Registered capital of
HK$1,000,000
& 781,000,000 7T

The Company
AAF

30 June 31 March
2008 2007
—EENE —TTtF
ANB=+H =ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
5,925
5,925

AEEXEE  BERABEZ

Principal activity and
place of operation
TEERRLE R

Investment holding in
Hong Kong and BVI
REERRBRLHSREER

Trademark and patent holding
in Hong Kong
RERERBEELER

Leasing of office premises in
Hong Kong

Provision of systems design
and integration services in
Hong Kong

REBREURRRT REA RS

Development, production and
sales of intelligent
automation and control
systems in the PRC

RABEIRE « EERBEE
BreaabRIEHRE
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMIB AT 2 & @)
Percentage of equity
RERDL
Place of Group’s
incorporation/ effective Held by the Held by
establishment interest Company subsidiary Particulars of issued/ Principal activity and
Name of Company Eaitijo Ay P HAAE HKEAR registered capital place of operation
DEEB BRIt Bh ®A BE BB/ BTRAFE TEERRLE B
Inno Hotel Management  BVI 100% - 100% 100 shares of USD1 each  Provision of hotel management
Limited HERUES 100B B AREE 1R T service in the PRC
ZBAn R BREEEERRE
Grand Sino Group Hong Kong 100% - 100% 1 share of HK$1 each Investment holding in
Holdings Limited B 1REREEI AT 2R Hong Kong
REBRERR
It REERBEER The PRC 100% - 100% Registered capital of Provision of hotel management
BRAT EF' RMB1,500,000 services in the PRC
HMERARY AR BREEEE R R
1,500,0007C
Inno Hotel Investment & ~ BVI 100% - 100% 100 shares of USD500 Investment holding in
Management Holdings EBEXES each Hong Kong and BVI
Limited 100/ BREES0ETT NERREBRAHS
2 Bt REER
Uni-World Hong Kong Hong Kong 100% - 100% 100 shares of USD500 Provision of hotel management
Group Limited B each services in the PRC
100M FAREE5003% 7T R BREEE SRR
pdi il
Sunny Team Corporation  Hong Kong 100% - 100% 1 share of HK$1 each Investment holding in the PRC
Limited a5 1REREEIAT R RPEREER
HEBRAR
BN HEEEEE The PRC 100% - 100% Registered capital of Provision of hotel management
BRAF] i RMB13,000,000 services in the PRC
ARERARE AR EREEE TR
13,000,0007T
Homesmart Properties Hong Kong 100% - 100% 1 share of HK$1 each Investment holding in the PRC
Limited BB 1REBREEIBTZRG RREREER
F2ERAF
BMNEEBEERE The PRC 100% - 100% Registered capital of Provision of hotel management
BRAR e RMB18,000,000 services in the PRC
HMERARE R BREEE SRR
18,000,0007T
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REE N E 2R

The Group The Company
KEE NG
30 June 31 March 30 June 31 March
2008 2008 2007

—EENE % —BENE TETHF
~A=1+H =q—1E AA=+tH =ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FAET FHT FExT FHT

Unlisted shares, at cost FELTRRG - RAA
Share of net assets of associates: BB N R EETE
— Balance at beginning of period/year — 1/ FEEH
- Disposal of associate —HEBENA
Share of losses of associates BN RS
— Share of losses before tax —HEBRTAIEE
— Share of tax expenses —EETRBRY
Balance at end of period/year 1R AR
Details of the Group’s interests in associates are as follows: REEREE AR 2 s BEEIIT
Percentage of equity
RERDL
Group’s Held
Form of effective by the Heldby  Particulars of Principal activity and
business Place of interest  Company subsidiary issued capital place of operation
Name of Company structure incorporation AEEY mAAT mKHEBAR  BET FEERER
ER EBRBIA FEMRR Lt EREs &R BE  RAREH sEnY
Grace Pond Limited * Incorporated Hong Kong 49% = 49% 1,000 sharesof  Provision of software
Bl Bk HK$1 each application consuitancy

1,000/ EE  services in Hong Kong
1BTZRG  REBRERTERDARS

General Win Limited * Incorporated Hong Kong 49% = 49%  1,000sharesof  Provision of software
Bl % HK$1 each application consuitancy
1,000%ERARE  servicesinHong Kong
1BTZRG  REBREREERRARSE

United Premier Medical Incorporated Cayman Island 15.87% - 2834% 21,169 sharesof  Investment holding
Group Limited * AL HEHS HK$0.01 each  $% &42 K
21,169k G E(E
0.0 T2 Rfn
* Companies not audited by PCP CPA Limited * RELAHEEEEEK S AT ER AR A A
7
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt # R &R 5T

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REEE D F) 2w

Summary financial information on associates: Bt AR G EREE

The Group
rEE
30 June 31 March
2008

—EENE

A~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Assets BE 10,034

Liabilities aE 1,041

Revenues WA -

(Loss) after tax BT (E518) (1,694)
20. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 20. REEEZEFER 2 ER

The Group
KEE

30 June 31 March
2008 2007
—BR\F —TTLF
AA=+HE =ZA=t—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT

Share of net assets of jointly controlled entity BEHRIENEREETFE -——
Note: The Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amounts of the Wiat . MARSEE R 2 BRREZEREG T iR
jointly controlled entity, the carrying amount is reduced to nil. HE - MEmESHRET -
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20. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 20. AHREEZEFIER 2% @

(continued)
Details of the Group’s interest in jointly controlled entity are as AEERLREH BB 2 ESFBEERINDT -
follows:
Percentage of equity
RERDL
Group’s Held
Form of effective by the Heldby  Particulars of Principal activity and
business Place of interest  Company subsidiary  issued capital place of operation
Name of Company structure incorporation AEEY mAAT mKMEBEAR  BRT FEERER
DEER ERERYE  EMRuLE ERER B8 BE RAEE -
Parentech China Limited ~ Incorporated Hong Kong 50% - 50% 2 sharesof Distribution of the Nature’s Cradle
HERE(EE)ERAT  ElRT % HK$1 each Products in the PRC
MrEREE FA®EI% $ENature’s CradleE
BT
Summary financial information on the jointly controlled entity EAAREE B A B 2 R R E RS 2 B B R
related to the Group’s interests: 2:

30 June 31 March
2008
—BBN\E ==
~NA=1+H =+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Current liabilities PEIEYE 92
Income WA 2
Expenses 53 @3)
Loss for the period/year B/ F NS 1)
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21. LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNTS DUE 21. [—XE& ’Aﬁﬁ*}\/@%/ﬂﬁﬁﬁ#%

FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE TO AAFIEERAEERK

DIRECTORS

(@) Loans to an associate are unsecured and interest bearing at (@) M—XBEATERAEER  KRFFIXS
rate of 5% per annum. The loans are repayable as follows: [BEHE - REERERTYIBFESR -

The Group The Company
%M AAT
30 June 31 March 30 June 31 March
2008 2007 2008 2007

—RBN\E —TTLE —RBNE  —FFLF
RB=t+H =A=+—H RA=+H =A=t+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FiH T FHL FHT

Within one year —FR
After one year —Fi&
(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) FEUSEE A RIKIE

The Company
AT

30 June 31 March
2008 2007
“BEENE _—TTLHF
AA=+H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TR

Amounts due from subsidiaries e EYNCIE 45,457
Less: Impairment loss W RERE -
45,257

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free FEUW B AR FRIEAEER - 28 RARE
and repayable on demand. BREE -

(c) Amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and (c) EN—ZRWBARRBEAEEE 28K
repayable on demand. AIEESKERE -

(d) Amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest free and (d) EREEFEAEIER REREAREX
repayable on demand. B -
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22. TRADING SECURITIES 22. XEARF

The Group and
the Company
REBMEARAT
30 June 31 March
2008 2007

—EEN\E —ZTT+HF
A~A=tH =A=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Pledged trading securities (at market value) BEARHESF(EME)
Listed equity securities ETRAES
—in Hong Kong —REE -
23. INVENTORIES 23. 78

The Group
rEE

30 June 31 March
2008 2007
e L A
A~A=t+H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET AT

Finished goods SRk o 999
Work in progress F R 95
Raw materials JRATEL 93
Spare parts and consumables # A M RoBREm -

1,187
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23. FE@m
BRARY ZFESBOTWT

23. |NVENTOR|ES (continued)
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:

The Group
rEE

30 June 31 March

2008 2007

—BB\FE  —TTLF
AA=tH =ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T

Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFEREE 17,325
Write down of inventories FEMR 60
17,385

24. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES 24, FEWERK
The Group The Company
AEE RATF
30 June 31 March 30 June
2008 2007 2008

31 March

= Lt
AV:ER:

“TTF
=A=t+—H

—sTNE
AA=+H

HK$’000
FHET

HK$'000
THET

HK$’000
FEx

HK$'000
THET

Trade debtors Z S RWERR
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREE

40,002
Amounts due from customers FEREFIE 15,820

Receivable from a jointly controlled R —RERT I EEE
entity IR
Receivable from an associate PR —REFE A RIFIA

92
69

94 Inno-Tech Holdings Limited ERIIZRBR AT



24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (continued)
(@) Ageing analysis
Included in accounts receivables are trade debtors (net
of allowance for doubtful debts) with the following ageing
analysis as of the balance sheet date:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

24, FEEWERRK ()
(@) BRERDMT

JRE AR SR B 4 5 B KR R (A M Bk R PR 33
) NEERZREAMAT

The Group The Company
rEE AT

30 June 31 March 30 June 31 March

2008 2007 2008 2007

—EENF —TTtF C—BENF “ETHF

ANA=+H =A=1+—H AA=tH =ZA=+—8H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

; FHT FET T

Current BNER 45,896 6,991 - -

Less than 1 month past due BEATE—EA 7,522 1,295 - =

1 to 3 months past due aH—Z=={EA 8,112 5,226 = =
Over 3 months past due BAER—(E A 3,743 26,490

19,377 33,011 - -

65,273 40,002 - -

Trade debtors are due within 120 days from the date by
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in Note 40(d).

(b) Impairment of trade debtors

At 30 June 2008, the Group’s trade debtors of HK$113,000
(31 March 2007: HK$320,000) was individually determined to
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that the receivables were not expected to be
recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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B RUERRAEEZH L1208 AEIH -
AEEGERRZE—SHBHNWE
40(d) °

(b) EZEWRTURE

R-TEBENERNA=1TH  ~"EEAH
113,000 L ( ZEETLF=A=+—H :
320,000/ 7L ) 2 B SRR KE R EE
ARAE o (&R B 2 FE Wk T8 B B B
NEgZRFEH  mMEBRET GRBEBET
AJUR [E] FE UL FRIE o NSRBI 4B LIt S 4 2
BAEAEER -
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (continued)
(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
1o a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

25. PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Bank deposits pledged against 1ERIRITIEEER
banking facilities ZHITIER

96

24, FEEWERRK (a0)
() YEBEZESEWRER

W 48 380 A 71 AR (B 2 FE MR TR B2 % 4 Rl
WERSLEZEPER

BHEEREZ BUHRRERAEBRAR
Wk L2 RBUYEFBER - REBBEL
B BEERS ARNEEERIEEX
2% BEMAERIDRGIETERED -
WAL S ERIELRERE - A%E
WEBL U F SRR A EAE AR -

25. BEBER

The Group The Company

30 June
2008

—2BNE
ANA=+A
HK$°000
FHT

/N
31 March 30 June 31 March
2007 2008 2007
—TELF —EENF —TTtF
=A=+—H” ~A=+H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T TERT &L

13,000
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. BERBEEEY

The Group The Company
rEH RAT]
30 June 31 March 30 June 31 March
2008 2007 2008 2007

“EENFE —TTLHF  EENF —TTAHF
AA=+H =ZA=+—H ARA=+H =A=t+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THET FHET THET

27.

Annual Report 07/08 £}

Cash at bank and in hand RITHERRIRS
Cash and cash equivalents IREERBRLZ
in the balance sheet ReERREEEY
Bank overdrafts (note 28) RITHE X (H15#28)
Cash and cash equivalents in the HRRERERERZ
consolidated cash flow statement RekREFEY
Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheets are BEBERANZRERESEEYRENTIRIE
the following amounts denominated in a currency other than the BERBIGEEEUINEETIE L, 58

functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

The Group The Company
rEH RAF

30 June 31 March 30 June 31 March
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BENFE —ETLEF —EENF —ETLE
AA=tH =ZA=+—H KA=tH =A=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T FET T

Renminbi NN 46 =
DISPOSAL OF AN ASSOCIATE 27. HE—XHE A H

The Group had disposed its associate, Pro-innovative Holdings A& B N HA A B E B & A B] Pro-innovative
Limited during the period. The share of aggregated net assets Holdings Limited = R & 2 B + & {4
of Pro-innovative Holdings Limited at the date of disposal were Pro-innovative Holdings Limited #] & ZE 5 B &
approximately HK$1,363,000, the disposal was satisfied by 49 /51,363,000/8 7T - HEBEURE I HL
cash of approximately HK$3,478,000 with a gain on disposal of 3,478,000/ 7T + WEk1S & W zE472,115,00074
approximately HK$2,115,000. I, @
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28. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 28. SRITERREX
Bank loans and overdrafts were repayable as follows: RITERRBEL ZEEBRAT ¢

The Group The Company
AEE PN
30 June 31 March 30 June 31 March
2008 2007 2008

—BRN\E  —TTLE  CBRNF

AB=tR =A=t-8 AA=tH

HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HKS000
Tt it T i

Non-current JEBNHA

Bank loans RITER
Current BPEA

Bank overdrafts (note 26) RITHB X (H15426)
Bank loans RITER

Total HaT

The Group The Company
rEH NN

30 June 31 March 30 June 31 March
2008 2007 2008
—EBEN\F TTHF —BEN\E
AB=tH =A=t+—H AA=1H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FH&T TExT

Secured [=Eiigi
Bank overdrafts RITHEY
Bank loans RITER
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28. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (continued)

The bank overdrafts facilities and the bank loans are secured by
the Group’s time deposits of HK$13,000,000 (31 March 2007:
HK$13,000,000) as at 30 June 2008.

The directors, Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert
and Mr. Wong Kwok Sing have provided personal guarantee for
bank loan and overdraft facilities to the extent of HK$15,000,000
(31 March 2007: HK$24,040,000) granted to the Group and the
Company.

Such banking facilities amounted to HK$Nil (31 March 2007:
HK$6,040,000), HK$3,000,000 (31 March 2007: HK$4,000,000)
and HK$12,000,000 (31 March 2007: HK$14,000,000)
respectively. The facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$NIl
(31 March 2007: HK$4,041,000), HK$2,912,000 (31 March
2007: HK$3,918,000) and HK$11,926,000 (31 March 2007:
HK$13,790,000) respectively.

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

28. RITEMREZ =)
RZBEZENFANA=Z+TH  RITBEEHABME
TTERTIAAREE13,000,0008 L (ZEZ+LF
= A=+—8 : 13,000,000/ 7T) Z & B1F K IE

v il

EFEMRAT EHETERERABRELERH
AEERARRRER 2 RITER KRB HRER
# 5 8015,000,0008 (=TT LF=A=+—
B : 24,040,000/ 7T) Z A AELR ©

BEARTERESNAZSAEL(ZESEF=
A=-+—H : 6,040,000 7T ) * 3,000,000/ 7T
—TZHE=A=+—H : 4,000,000/ 7T) X%
12,000,000 L (ZET+F=A=+—H :
14,000,000 7T) - EFESRIBATEL(=
ZZT+F=ZA=+—H8 : 4,041,000/ 7T) *
2,912,008 T(ZEE+F=A=+—H :
3,918,000 7T ) 11,926,000/ 7T ( — T T+ 4F
= A=+—H : 13,790,000 7T ) °

fEEZBIHBANT

Bank loans and overdrafts
BITERRES
The Group The Company
REE RAT]
30 June 31 March 30 June 31 March

2008 2007 2008 2007
“BE\F —TTLF ZEENF —TTAF
AA=+H =ZA=+—H ARA=+H =A=t+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THET FHET TET

Within 1 year R—FA
Between 1 and 2 years —FEWE
Between 2 and 5 years WEZHF
Wholly repayable within 5 years REFRBEER
Over 5 years R
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28. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (continued) 28. BITERRELZ @)
The effective interest rates were as follows: BERFEDOT

31 March
2007

Bank overdrafts RITEX 9.3%
Bank loans RITER 8.8%
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of borrowings EERA BEZREEREATERE -

approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in Hong BEZERmETIAETIE -
Kong dollars.

29. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND 29. EZ B R Bt EAREMEMARK
OTHER PAYABLES 15

The Group The Company
rEH VNG|

30 June 31 March 30 June 31 March
2008 2007 2008
—EENE —TTLF —EENE
AA=+H =A=+—H A~A=TH

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FHT THET &L

Trade payables B 5 FERTERR 175 -
Bills payable EREIE 1,970 -
Amount due to a related company e —KRESEARIFIE 1,493 -
Accrued expenses and other payables  FEFTE B R AR IR 10,636

The carrying amount of trade and other payables are all B 5 RhEMENRIB REEHNETIE -
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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30.

31.

32.

OTHER LOANS

Other loan were unsecured, bearing interest at rate of 13% per
annum and repayable within 12 months from the balance sheet
date.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees with their assets held separately from those of the Group.
The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”),
managed by independently approved MPF trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

30. HttEMK

31.

32.

HtERREER  RFEMNEI1BEFERER
HEHBRFT2EAREER -

RKEF
AEBERBEEFRRHIERESF BRI SRER
BREEDIBA 2 EEHETARGIEAESHE
(Iafaertdl)) - IR BAHBULETAE
B2ZERHERAGE HEAEEAKEEED
FiSE - ARE2EZBHIERES ((RER )
HEBEVRAURESELAAETE - REBESF
g BERHEEEDHAREEBREAZE%
K BRWA LR A% H20,000/87T ° 5 &
ZHAR—BIELAGRREEME ©

REBRIEAK

The Group
rEE

30 June 31 March
2008 2007
—EENFE —TTtHF
AA=+H =ZA=+—H~
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Balance as at the beginning of period/year 1, E LR 150 150
Addition during the period/year 1, F RN 83 -
Balance as at the end of period/year TR 233 150

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, an entity is
required to make long service payments to its employees upon the
termination of their employment or retirement when the employee
fulfils certain conditions and the termination meets the required
circumstances. However, where an employment is simultaneously
entitled to a long service payment and to a retirement scheme
payment, the amount of the long service payment may be reduced
by certain benefits arising from the retirement scheme.

Annual Report 07/08 i
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt # R &R 5T

33. CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXATION

102

@

Current taxation in the consolidated

balance sheet represents:

33. AHRIELR A

The Group
REH
30 June
2008

31 March
2007
—BENF “TTLH
AA=tH =ZA=1t—8H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT

@ HEFAEERBRIAMBAR:

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax BEFISTRE (394)
Provisional profits tax paid EHEEMEH -

Balance of profits tax provision relating BEFE 2 ST ELSR
to prior years (659)
(1,058)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the

period are as follows:

b) BEHERIELHARIR:
RAHE  ERGEEERRRERZE
FERRBEZ EREE D BT

Accelerated
depreciation

allowances
IETE RS
HK$'000
TP
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: FERIEAEEESR
At 1 April 2006 RZZEERFHA—H 4,499
Charged to consolidated income RiraBEERAHRR
statement (note 9) (H1529) 477
At 31 March 2007 RZZEZ+F=RA=+—H 4,976
Charged to consolidated income REFABEmR AR
statement (note 9) (H29) 2,813
At 30 June 2008 R-BENEASA=1+H 7,789
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(o) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (continued)
The Group has not recognised net deferred tax assets in
respect of tax losses of HK$3,760,000 (31 March 2007:
HK$1,133,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
stream. The tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.

HK$6.3 million Convertible Notes due 2008 (the “2005
Notes”)

On 12 August 2005, the Company issued 3-year HK$6.3 million
unsecured convertible notes bearing interest at 7.5% per annum
payable quarterly in arrears of each year. Subsequent to a share
consolidation on 7 February 2006, holders of the 2005 Notes
have the option to convert the notes into ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.02 each at a conversion price of HK$0.1,
subject to adjustments in accordance with the instrument
constituting the convertible notes, at any time nine months after
12 August 2005 up to the third business day before the maturity
date, 7 August 2008. Unless previously redeemed and cancelled,
the notes will be redeemed at par on the maturity date. During the
period, the convertible notes holders have exercised their rights to
convert the Company’s ordinary shares.

The interest charged for the period/year is calculated using the
effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate of

8.5% to the liability component.

The 2005 Notes were fully converted during the period/year.

FIH

B RS R R M A

(b) BRERZEEMRIBEEE: (@)
R EETE R AR REFISRR - AL B
ETL T IEE5 183,760,000 L (ZEE £ F
=A=+—H : 1,133,000/ T ) HERIEIE
MIBAETFE - BRERABE - BIEEIE
TEER

—Z2F )\ F 3|1 26,300,00078 T AT K E
B=Z=ZhFZEE])

Wo_ZERENA+-H  AAFRTEE
6,300,000 T2 = FHIMEM IR TR - F
BATSE  BEREBERENFRHNMN  -RZ=Z
TRFZALARNEHE  ZEERFEER
BARAERER-_ZTRFNAT_ARNAMBEARZ
BEHHENZELER TN \FN\ALBH
MR B ERIR0AB T2 R ER AT RE
B0.0248 0 2 AN A B BAR  IRAR(E AT IR A F]
BIREIR 2 SR IGRE L T - IRIEERBIEIE
B &8 - BRIRSEEREREBRREEAER
Bl o Hiny - AR EBFEABTEZERER
B AR R E B 2 R o

3,/ PO 2 8 T B PR R R 2 SR R
=8 SEFHH - Tt ARMEHS -

—ERRFRBORYFREZBULE o



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt # R &R 5T

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 34, TERBRERE @
HK$6.3 million Convertible Notes due 2008 (the “2005 —ZZ)\F % 26,300,00058 T AR E
Notes”) (continued) BI=ZZ2RFZE ) w
The net proceeds received from the issue of the convertible notes BT RRERATNNFIEFEE Y BB EH D
have been splitted between the liability component and an equity KRS - HEREEESRARNERRKRA Y
component, representing the fair value of the embedded option to NEEERE N TE

convert the liability into equity of the Group as follows:

The Group and
the Company
REBRAAT
30 June 31 March
2008 2007

—EEN\E —ZTTLHF
A~A=tH =A=+—H”
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Liability component at the beginning of R/ FH2z aEBH

the period/year 15,056
Redemption of convertible bonds & AT E (9,320)
Conversion of convertible bonds KRR ES HIRAEBR

to ordinary shares -
Interest charged WeER 2 F1 8 1,136
Interest paid TR ZFE (762)
Liability component at the end of RE Rz BEBD

the period/year 6,110
Less: Amount due within one year shown R P RRBaER —FA

under current liabilities BHB 2 BUB (95)

Amount due after one year R—F & EIH 2 A 6,055
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. A

30 June 2008 31 March 2007
—EENFEXRA=TH —EE+F=A=+—H
Number Nominal Number Nominal

of shares value of shares value
RHEE HE k8 E H{E
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000

TR FET TFH& FHET

Authorised: SERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each FREE0.028 T
2 ik
Beginning and end of B F R
the period/year R 5,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each FREE0.028 T
2 ik
Beginning of the period/year B FH) 335,075 6,702
Shares issued under share IRIERE AR 2
option scheme (note a) BT
(Bizta) = =
Placements of shares (note b) [
(Hstb) = =
Conversion of convertible HRATIRR IR
notes (note c) (H1ztc) - -
Issuance of shares BT 95,000 1,900
End of period/year HFR 430,075 8,602
The holders of ordinary shares are entitlied to receive dividends as LB E A RERTREIR 2 RS RATAZAR
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share NEIGHRREF—RAR—FBRR - FIELTBER
at meetings of the Company. All the ordinary shares rank equally RARRFIBREE MY Z A RSk o
with regard to Company’s residual assets.
Note: Bt
(@ During the period, options were exercised to subscribe for (@ HBA - BBRREEITE - IR A (& 39,229,000
98,227,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of 7 7T 7R B 98,227,000 R A A Rl @R - &
HK$39,229,000 of which HK$1,964,000 was credited to share 1,964,000 et AMRZS - £2%837,265,0007%8 7T
capital and the balance of HK$37,265,000 was credited to the share BIEF AR D5 (EER ° 12,493,000/ L E B BB
premium account. HK$12,493,000 has been transferred from the REEREERMRER -

share option reserve to the share premium account.
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35. SHARE CAPlTAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(b)  On 19 April 2007, the Company issued 351,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.168 each totalling HK$58,968,000 as a consideration
for exchange of 56% in the issued capital of a subsidiary namely
Autoscale Resources Limited. The excess of the consideration over
the nominal value of shares of HK$7,020,000 was credited to the
share premium account of the Company.

On the same date, the Company placed and issued 100,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.168 each at cash consideration of
HK$16,800,000 in the Company. The excess of the aggregate cash
consideration over the nominal value of shares of HK$2,000,000 was
credited to the share premium account of the Company.

On 25 May 2007, the Company placed and issued 184,884,900
ordinary shares of HK$1.100 each at cash consideration of
HK$203,373,000 in the Company. The excess of the aggregate cash
consideration over the nominal value of shares of HK$3,698,000 was
credited to the share premium account of the Company.

() On 27 July 2007, the convertible note holders have exercised
conversion right to convert the whole part of the principal amount
into the 63,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company. The excess of
the aggregate cash consideration over the nominal value of shares
of HK$1,260,000 was credited to the share premium account of the
Company.

(d)  All new ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares.

() Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at balance sheet

b)) RZZEZELtFWMA+NE - ARQARET
351,000,000 ik & & M B 0.168 /& 7T 2 ¥ @
% - & #£58,968,000/% 7T * {EAREUH B A 7
Autoscale Resources Limited & 3 1T A% 2X56% 2
RAE - REBERMDEEZ 357,020,000/ T
EET AR R RIBHEE o

FA - A2 RRE ¢ E16,800,0008 TR E &
F%47100,000,000% F AR E1EH0.1688 T 2 &L @
& - 4835 & B IR M EE 2 #55 2,000,000
BB AR AR HER o

R-ZZ+ERA-+HHBE ARFKEERE
208,373,000/8 T AL & K 317184,884,900 F &
HEE1.1008 T2 Eimk - MR eREBLRG
{8 2 #8453,698,00078 7T B 5T AR R IR 9 4
BER -

© RIZZELFLtA-++B WJBREEEEAEA
1T Rk - 182 EARE 5 IR A63,000,0008%
RARE@E - BRSREBERMEE IS
1,260,000/ L2 5t AR BIIR (D)@ EER ©

d) WAFEERTZEHHAEBRERERNEME
HHF AR SR o

@) REFRARBIEFARITERBEEZ FH -

date.
Exercise price 30 June 2008 31 March 2007
after share Number
consolidation —E2ENE
Exercise period REAEHE AA=tH
1T ZiTEE o {=|
5 July 2002 to 4 July 2012 —EE-ELARAZE-E--E+AMA  HK$0.287 T 4,800,000 22,320,000
6 January 2004 to 5 January 2014 “EEMF-AAEE-Z-ME-AREE  HK$0.22B 7T 10,500 16,660,000
20 September 2005 to ZZTRFNAZTRE
19 September 2015 —E—RFNA+ANA HK$0.1147& 7T 1,000,000 17,000,000
23 August 2007 to “ZT+HENAZT=R%F
22 August 2017 —=—+ENF-+-H HK$0.635 7T 69,780,000 -
75,590,500 55,980,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note
36 to the financial statements.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 July 2002
whereby any employees (whether or not full-time or part-time) and
any consultant or adviser who, at the sole discretion of the board,
subject to the terms of the share option scheme, contributed to
the Group, may be granted options to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the schemes must not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue.

() Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO option scheme adopted by the
Company on 5 July 2002 (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”), the principal terms of which were set out in
the Prospectus, options were granted to the grantees to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

The following share options with an exercise period from 5
July 2002 to 4 July 2012 were outstanding under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme during the period:

36.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

SBRRrEsT 8
ARAR-ZTE-F+ AR R RN —ERAE
Bl Rt - RS (T 2B ) RAEEH*
HRER Sk RRRS (EBRAHEET B2 (KT - B
ERHMERAHAREEMAERME )G A EE
PR AR LA SRR AR 2 RIRAR ©

RIEZ ST EIF 8L 1R H 2 BB TS S A0 K
B S IMSHEBEHETRMNZ10% -

BXRAHERAERESTSE
BREARNAR T -F+ AR BRMBH
BRARERATEREGTE(TERARE
RRATEERE ] - EEXEBERFNERE
12) AR R AFSR AR H AR A RE AR
NERD -

i)

HIMRE B R AR SR ATRE AR 81 M R
TREZERETERE_TT_FL AR
HEZZ——FLAMBR)WT:

Number of share options granted on 5 July 2002

R-EE-ELARAREZEREHE
At At
Name or category 1 April Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 30 June
of participant 2007 during during during during 2008
SHERS R=ZEZt& theperiod theperiod theperiod theperiod R=EENE
Bkl mA-H HRRY HRTE B eH BR%¥ A~A=1H
Exercise price per share REHAREZ HK$0.28% 7T HK$0.28% 7T
after share consolidation BRITRE
Executive directors: WTES
Ms. Wong Yuen Yee Uil e 2,400,000 - (2,400,000) - - -
Mr. Wong Kwok Sing ERELE 2,400,000 - (2,400,000) - = =
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert U St 2,400,000 - (2,400,000) - - -
Mr. Lam Siu San Wk 2,400,000 - (2,400000) - - -
9,600,000 - (9,600,000) - - -
Senior management BREERE 4,800,000 - (2,400,000) - - 2,400,000
Other employees Hitgg 7,920,000 - (5,520,000) - - 2,400,000
22,320,000 - (17,520,000) - - 4,800,000
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. AR EFTE @)
(i) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (i) BRAMEREERETS
Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the sole REARAFE—REN_ZEZE-_FtAA
shareholder of the Company on 5 July 2002, the Company HRBMEEARER AABRMERR
adopted the Post-IPO share option scheme, the principal MEREERETE - EXEHRRENE
terms of which are set out in the section headed “Share AR ERZFTERPO[ REARAERT B — &0 o KT
Option Schemes” in Appendix IV of the Prospectus. Options TMFE—ARNE  AARREEXARE
were granted by the Company under the Post-IPO Share [R1& BENRAE AT B R BB IR o

Option Scheme on 6 January 2004.

The following share options with an exercise period from 6 HNIRIE B X AR EIRE BRI 84K
January 2004 to 5 January 2014 were outstanding under the TEZERE(TTERE —EEWFE— A X
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the period: AZ=-Z—M&E—ARHE)AT :

Number of share options granted on 6 January 2004
REBEMF-AAARHZBRESR

At
Name or category Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 30 June
of participant during during during during 2008
SHENS 2T theperiod  theperiod theperiod  the period R=ZEBNE
Bk = ARl BRTE BREs BRx% RSA=1A
Exercise price per share RGO EHEZ HK$0.22% 7T HK$0.22% T
after share consolidation BRTEE
Executive directors: WITEE:
Ms. Wong Yuen Yee Eiat 2,378,500 - (2,378,500) - - -
Mr. Wong Kwok Sing EHELE 2,378,500 - (2,378,500) - - -
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert UL S 2,378,500 - (2,378,500) - - -
Mr. Lam Siu San MR 2,378,500 - (2,378,500) - - -
9,514,000 - (9,514,000) - - -
Senior management BHREERE 2,378,500 - (2,378,500) - - -
Other employees HitfEE 4,767,500 - (4,757,000) - - 10,500
16,660,000 - (16,649,500) - - 10,500
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. ﬂﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ(%)
(iii) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme @iy BRLOHERZERETE
Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the sole BREAQRE—RER-_ZEE_F+AH
shareholder of the Company on 5 July 2002, the Company ARBIEERER  ARARMERR
adopted the Post-IPO share option scheme, the principal FMEREBRESTS - EXERREARNE
terms of which are set out in the section headed “Share RRZ AR PSR [ FEAR AR ET &8I | — &P - A7)
Option Schemes” in Appendix IV of the Prospectus. Options R-ETERFEANA-_+EREEAAHAE
were granted by the Company under the Post-IPO Share fR1&BEIRAE AT B D B AR AEE o

Option Scheme on 20 September 2005.

The following share options with an exercise period from 20 ENIRIR B X AR S IR E BB AR RT 84 R
September 2005 to 19 September 2015 were outstanding TEZEREGTERE -_ZEZTRE LA
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the period: —t+REZZ—RFAATABE)WT :

Number of share options granted on 20 September 2005
RZZZEFNA=TAREZEREHR

At At
Name or category 1 April Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 30 June
of participant 2007 during during during during 2008
SHEENS R=BEt&E theperiod theperiod theperiod theperiod R=EENE
%<5 mA—-H AR HRfTE M 8E HMR%®  ABE=1HE
Exercise price per share BRITEE HK$0.114% 7T HK$0. 1143 7T
Executive directors: WTES:
Ms. Wong Yuen Yes BsLt 2,900,000 - (2,900000) - - -
Mr. Wong Kwok Sing EERLE 2,900,000 - (2,900,000) - - -
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert By St 2,900,000 - (2,900,000) = = =
Mr. Lam Siu San Mg 2,900,000 - (2,900,000) - - -
11,600,000 - (11,600,000) - - -
Senior management BREERE 750,000 - (750,000) - - -
Other employees Hibgg 4,650,000 - (3,650,000) - - 1,000,000
17,000,000 - (16,000,000) - - 1,000,000
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. AR EFTE @)
(iv) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (iv) BRLMEREZERETS
Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the sole REARAFE—REN_ZEZE-_FtAA
shareholder of the Company on 5 July 2002, the Company ARBsEERER AAGRMERR
adopted the Post-IPO share option scheme, the principal MEREERETE - EXEHRRENE
terms of which are set out in the section headed “Share AR ERZFTERPO[ REARAERT B — &0 o KT
Option Schemes” in Appendix IV of the Prospectus. Options THFENAZ+=8 ARFREHERA
were granted by the Company under the Post-IPO Share FERE BRI DB -

Option Scheme on 23 August 2007.

The following share options with an exercise period from 23 HNIRIE B X AR EIRE BRI 84K

August 2007 to 22 August 2017 were outstanding under the TEZEBERE(TESRER -+ ANA

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the period: T+ E=REZZE—+tFNAZFTZH)W
-

Number of share options granted on 23 August 2007
RZBBLENA-T=BRHZBREHE

At At
Name or category 1 April Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 30 June
of participant during during during during 2008
SHERS B theperiod  theperiod theperiod  the period R=ZEBNE
%3] = HRRE BRTHE HREEeH BALH™  AA=tH
Exercise price per share BRTEE HK$0.630% 7T HK$0.630i% 7T
Executive directors: WITEE:
Ms. Wong Yuen Yee Eiat - 7,930,000 - - - 7,930,000
Mr. Wong Kwok Sing EHELE - 7,930,000 - - - 7,930,000
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert EhEELE - 7,930,000 - - - 7,930,000
Mr. Lam Siu San Wk E - 7,930,000 - - - 7,930,000
- 31,720,000 - - - 31,720,000
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Wong Tak Leung, Charles FER - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Lai Ying Sum RIER - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Cheung King Hung Be - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
- 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Senior management SREEE - 61,470,000 (39,280,000) - - 22,190,000
Other employees Hitgg - 12,870,000 - - - 12,870,000
- 109,060,000  (39,280,000) - - 69,780,000
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(iv) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the sole
shareholder of the Company on 5 July 2002, the Company
adopted the Post-IPO share option scheme, the principal
terms of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” in Appendix IV of the Prospectus. Options
were granted by the Company under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme on 26 October 2007.

The following share options with an exercise period from 26
October 2007 to 25 October 2017 were outstanding under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the period:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

36. HERAESTE @

(ivy BRLAHERZERETS @
BRBEARRE—BRER-_ZEZE_F+AH
ARBIEERER  ARERMERR
FEREERETS  EEZHERENE
AR ERRMT e[ BT 8] | —&f - AN A
R-EE+F+ A+ NHEBREBEXAR
ERRAE AR AT B4 L B AR A -

HARBE R ARSREBRETE MR
TREZEREGTEHAE-_TZTLF+A
Zt+ABEZE—tF+A=-+HABA)W
T

Number of share options granted on 26 October 2007
RZBBLET A+ AAREZBERESE

At
Name or category Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 30 June
of participant during during during during 2008
SHERS theperiod theperiod theperiod  the period R=ZEBNE
R Bl BRfTE BREE BRAR SA=TH
Exercise price per share BRTER HK$0.4663% 7T HK$0.4663% 7t
Other employees HEitES - 8777940  (8,777,940) - - -

111
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36. fERRREFT S
vy BROHEREZBERETS @

36. SHARE OPT'ON SCHEMES (continued)
(iv) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair values of the options granted on 20 September
2005, 23 August 2007 and 26 October 2007 determined
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model were HK$2,459,600,
HK$32,590,077 and HK$1,660,147 respectively. The
significant inputs and assumptions to the model were as
follows:

R-BEZERFEAA-_+H 2T L4
NAZ+=ZBE=ZZEZLtF+ A=+
AL ERE A FESIRZER
fE iR 7 E B R B E 52,459,600/ 7T
32,590,077/8 7T % 1,660,147/8 T ° sZ &
ZEEHASBERBRERAT

20 September 23 August 26 October
Grant date 2005 2007 2007

—EThHE —EELF —EELE
1TfEHA hB=+H NB=+=H +HA=+7H

Stock assets price IR EEERE HK$0.0555% ¢ HK$0.6377r  HK$0.46658 T
Exercise price 1I{EE HK$0.0573#% 7T HK$0.637%c  HK$0.4557 7T
Expected volatility SELEE] 107% 77.37% 77.67%
Expected life TEAASFEA 5 yearstE 10 years4E 10 yearstE
Risk free interest rate Rk B 4.012% 4.480% 3.910%
Expected dividend yield TEAARR B s 0% 0% 0%

TEHR R IE JY IR B AR D AR AR 2 BB E
SLKIBEESE °

Expected volatility was based on weekly historical volatility
since the establishment of the Company.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model requires the input of highly THEHAERETERAERGASETE
subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share price. BREREE  BRERERE - FEHHARE
Any changes in subjective input assumptions could materially 2B e AL EETELAEAEY
affect the fair value estimate. 2,
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37. RESERVES 37. f#E
(@ The Group (a) =%£E

Retained

Convertible Capital profits/

Share notes redemption (Accumulated

Share option reserve  Contributed reserve  Exchange losses)

premiom  reserve  TERZE  wupls KAEE  resene  REEA
BiGE  BRERE B AR B  ENRE  (BMER)
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000

A T TR TH1L ThL T TR

At Aprl 2006, R-EEAENE-R 2445 1462 14 56% I - 13864 1587
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - (3116) (3116)
Issuanoe ofshares Edii0) 13300 - - - - - - 1330
Shares ssuance costs Rh%ER @) - - - - - - [72)
De-recogriton of equity SREDERES

component of converthle JhEgn Bk

fotes, netof rensecton cost ¥l - - 282) - - - % -
Eichange diference on FaBAEIER

consoidation - - - - - (34) - (%)
At31 March 2007 WoEEtE=f=1-H 31213 1462 160 562 & (34) 1,020 55,049
Loss for e perod THEEE - - - = = = M) [se)
Issuance of shares KRty 206423 - - - - - - 266423
Fair vlue of options granted BRinERE ATE - 34261 = = = = = 3421
Exercise of share opfions frEERiE 49758 (12493) - - - - - 37,265
Sheresissuance costs BUEGEG (15614) - - - - - - (156M)
Evercise of convetble bonus nots, AmaRizE

net of transaction cost BIBRAIE 5026 - (160) - - - - 4866
Exchange diference on FERAZENZE

consoidation - - - - - M) - &)
At 30 June 2008 W-EENERA=1R 342,866 220 - 5625 L4 (45) (60332) 34T
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(@) The Group (continued)

The share issuance costs were written off against the share
premium account.

Included in Group accumulated losses is an accumulated
losses of HK$2,270,000 (31 March 2007: HK$1,580,000),
attributable to associates and jointly controlled entity.

The application of the share premium account and capital
redemption reserve is governed by Bye-Law 140(A) of the
Company’s Bye-Law and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (“Companies Act”).

Pursuant to the Re-organisation as set out in the prospectus,
the Company became the holding company of the Group
on 5 July 2002. The excess of the consolidated net assets
represented by the shares acquired over the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the Re-organisation was transferred to contributed
surplus. Contributed surplus is available for distribution to
shareholders subject to the provision of section 54 of the
Companies Act.

(@) KB @)

B An AT BRI A (B RRMSH o

AEERABEREETRERERFEHIE
2,270,000 T(ZEE+F=ZF =+ —
B : 1,580,000/ 7T) + JhEBEE AR K—
RERNEHEIEERE -

ERB R ER NN ELOFEAZ AR
AZARIE140A GRBRE-NN—F
REVE(RRIEDEE -

RIBEREREMEZER  ARFNR_F
EFLARARABREBZER AT -
RIBEARRRFIREBRNBHRIEASR
BREMBTROZEEZRAEEFE
HRECERANES - BARBKARER
BDESEBARABIR DK ©

EAIZRAER A A
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37. RESERVES (continued) 37. 1%%1%(%)
(b) The Company (b) &AHE
Share  Convertible Capital
Share option notes Contributed redemption (Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses) Total
TEREE RAER
ROVEE EBRERE #E BABK i (RtEB) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr Tir Tir Tir TAL Thr TAL
Balance at 1 April 2006 R-EEXENA—H 24,445 1,462 442 5,625 43 (11,329) 20,688
k5
Loss for the year AEEBRE - - - - - (3,384) (3,384)
Issuance of shares Bk 13,300 - - - - - 13,300
Shares issuance costs ROBTER (472) - - - - - (472)

De-recognition of equity FIREAERZE
component of convertible LRSS Bk

notes, net of transaction costs X B A - - (282) - - 282 -

Balance at 31 March 2007 WZEZ+F=A=t-H 372713 1,462 160 5,625 43 (14,431) 30,132
ZEER

Loss for the period TERER - - - = = (48222) (48.222)
Issuance of shares Bk 266,423 - - - - - 266,423
Fair value of options granted 2 EEREZ AFE - 34,251 - - - - 34,251
Exercise of share options {TiFIERE 49,758 (12,493) = = - = 37,265
Share issuance costs RABTER (15,614) - - - - - (15,614)
Exercise of convertible bonus T {E ATARIEA Z 8 -

notes, net of transaction costs  EHBR HHEA 5,026 - (160) - - - 4,866
Balance at30June 2008 ~ R=EB\EXB=1H

A3 342,866 23,220 - 5,625 43 (62,653) 309,101

At 30 June 2008, no aggregate amount of reserves available RZZEENFANA=1+H  FEAHET
for distribution to shareholders of the Company (31 March RARRRzFHEEE(ZESEF=A
2007: HK$Nil). =+—8: BT -
Pursuant to the Re-organisation as set out in the prospectus, BRIBEERERMML2ER - ARFARZE
the Company became the holding company of the Group ToFEARARARNER ZERATR -
on 5 July 2002. The excess of the consolidated net assets RIBEEAARR B TKEER OB EHRIEAR
represented by the shares acquired over the nominal BMREMBTIRO CABZEKEEEFE
value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange SRECER AR - MARRAIRELR
under the Re-organisation was transferred to contributed AVEESAMED R TR ©

surplus. Contributed surplus is available for distribution to
shareholders subject to the provision of section 54 of the
Companies Act.
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38. Acquisition of subsidiary 38. WWEME AT
The Group acquired 56% of the issued share capital of Autoscale AEEIZANEGC0,484,0008 T (BIEREE
Resources Limited for a total consideration of HK$60,484,000 F3 1,516,000 7 7T ) 42 B Autoscale Resources
(including professional fee of HK$1,516,000). The amount of Limited B B TR AN 2 56% ~ WIEFMELmE S
goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was HK$60,643,000. %4/560,643,00078 7T °
The net liabilities acquired in the transaction and the goodwill ETRGRMEEEBEFERMEERENT ¢

arising are as follows:

HK$’000
FET

Net (liabilities) acquired: Friiis (B &) 5% -

Amount due to director ERNESERIE (59)

Accruals fEETE A (100)

(159)

Gooadwill (note 17) RE(ME17) 60,643
60,484

Total consideration satisfied by: BRREUTYSES A

Cash paid for professional fee REXERACENES 1,516

Shares allotted FERL AR D 58,968
60,484

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: IWWREFTE AR & M FEE -

Cash consideration ReRE 1,516
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39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manage its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, raise new debt financing, or sell assets to reduce
debt. No changes were made in the objective and processes
during the period/year of 2008 and 2007.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio. The Group’s
policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The
Group’s gearing ratio at 30 June 2008 and 31 March 2007 was as
follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

39. EXERERE

AEBERAAL  BREERETRSELE
BESE BB AR RS AR
BABIERADH - AEE 2 B R E
AT o

REBERERGERE YRR EB LA
MEEZRBSEIELAR - RERFIFRER
e ARERERBEARFKMNREZ 25 -
FBSRRBIEA - BFITHRD - ERMETZH
BRHEBEENREER R_TTN\FR=-F
THFHEFE  BRREFTEERES) -

AEFEREERBLXRERER - AEE 2K
REEFEERBEENEIEKY - AEER=
T NFRRA=+THERZEE+F=RA=+—H
ZEEABLENT

The Group and the Company

AEBMRADT
30 June 31 March
2008 2007
—EEN\E _—TZTtHF
AA=+H =A=1+—8H
HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Debt (Note ) &% (Hiz) 14,837 26,068
Cash and cash equivalents and Re MRSEEMAK
pledged deposits BIIRTTR (50,305) (15,121)
Net debt BB TR (35,468) 10,947
Equity (Note i) RRHE (B 3201 335,721 64,151
Net debt to equity ratio B F BRI AR AN L & 0% 17.1%

[0} Debt comprises total bank borrowings and convertible notes.

(i)  Equity include all capital and reserves of the Group.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, equity price risk, foreign currency
risk and cash flow interest rates risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme seek to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance and are set out
below.

@

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on
variable-rate bank borrowings. Management monitors the
related cash flow interest rate risk exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant cash flow interest rate risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
at the balance sheet date. For variable-rate borrowings,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
possible change in interest rate.

At 2008, if interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss after tax would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$14,000 (31 March 2007: HK$68,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on
its bank balances and bank loans.

AEEKERPEYSEMBRR - BRERR
% RBEERR  RERR - INERBERE
MENEREE - NEH 2 BERREETEZK
BN A mARERNEEMBRAEHR 2
& WESIWT -

(@ F=mEp
AEBmMERRITEREZIHINEEH R
EREFERR - EREXRYELEFHER
EREFEZER  BREZRZEE T
ERRESTREFNERR -

AT EREDHIIRIBERAEER ZIE0TE
TAMZRBREDL - REBFNEEE
5 BB DNEBRNEEREHAREREZ
BESENBFHAREEMNRE - 100fHE
EHIBREERNAEEEEABARE
HAERR  TABEEHANRAELEE
e A R

RZTT)N\F - W& EFATBE100EE
M A M SR - AREE
B8 EIB &0, A 4914,0005 7T (=
TEL+HF=HA=+—H :68,0008T) ' £

SFARANR R EERIRITE SR LIRITER
ZHRER

EAIZRAER A A



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. €M I Am

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBESER
The Group incurred a loss in the current period and was AEBRARNFESBEE  MAUARITRE

financed by bank and other borrowings. The Group’s
operations are exposed to liquidity risk. Management
monitors closely the liquidity position of the Group so as to
meet all the financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Management will consider to raise fund by ways of issuing
debt and equity instruments of the Group or to obtain
adequate committed lines of funding from financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to
pay:

30 June 2008

—2EN\FRA=TH
Total More
contractual
undis-
counted
cash flow
el
AR
ReRE
HK$000
Tin

More than
1 year but
less than
2years
BE-£
EHR
k3
HK$'000
TEn

Within 1
year or on
demand
—ER
EREE
HK$'000
Tién

Canying A
Amount
KEf
HK$'000

TH7 7

f8

than

2years
but less

than

5years

W
it

HK$'000

B

EERTEES - AKREZLERAEMER
BELRR  ERETUERAKEZR
BETIMN - BREMPABEIMZMHEER
- EEERERBABTAREER MK
ATRAZHTABEESHASHMBBIVG
ARARBES  UENEEHLEHRS
BEME -

TRFNAEERARARTESRAE
REERZHBANHR - HIREBEAHR
MRRERE(BRERAAOMEFTE ZF
BN smEEE N E - AIRBEER
BRZAE)  URARERARRRKER
MRz &xFAH

The Group
558

More than
5years
it ohik:3
HK$'000
TR

31 March 2007
£=A=1-A
More than
2 years
but less
than
5years

Totdl
contractual
undis-
counted

More than
1 year but
less than
2 years

Within 1
year oron
demand
More than
5 years

Camying
Amount
B
HK$ 000
ThL

k3
HK$ 000
Thn

Bankloans and BERR
overafts % 19958 (2504 (16609 (4 (1031) (4610
Tradepayables,  ZZERES
acoed expenses  ERFEAR
and other payables  EtENFE 14274 (14311)  (14311) - - -
QOther loan BHEH 5150 (164  (5,164) - - -
Amountsdueto  FENERFE
drectors 0% 026 026 - - -
Convertblenotes ~ TAKEE 6,110  (68%0)  (366) (6,534) - -
54788  (68255) (45,736) (6878  (1,081)  (4,610)
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

120

(©

30 June 2008
Z23\EARA=TH

Total More than

contractual Morethan  2years

undis-  Within1 1yearbut  butless

counted yearoron lessthan than

cashfow demand  2years  Syears

Caming #54 -§h BB-F HAWE
Amount  ABE  FER SR EOR
FEE RERE TXEE WE  IE
HKS$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK§000  HKS'000
TEr TR TEx TEr TEx

Armount due o -
asubsidary WEAREE
Amounts due to drectors JE/FEEFE
Acoruedexpensesand JETERR
other payables AtoENFE
Other loan EHER

Convertile notes TAREE

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as trading securities (see note
22). All of the investments are listed investment on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong.

Sensitivity analysis

At 2008, if equity prices at that date had been 5% higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, net loss for the
period would decrease by HK$51,000 (31 March 2007:
HKS$ Nil).

40. €@ T HEum)
(b) FEBESEE@®

The Company
LA

More than
5years
it ohik:3
HK$'000
TR

(c)

Totdl More than
contractual Morethan  2years
undis- Within1 ~ Tyearbut  butless
counted  yearoron  less then than
cashfow  demand  2years  Syears
Carying ] —FR & More than
Amount I 5 years
“ 4 AR
HK$'000  HK§'000
Thn  ThL

125 (1 2&) (125] - - -

288 [8%) (6% . n B
5150 BB (5164 . ; B
6110 [6890) (%6 (65 - -

U283 (1507) 859 65 - -

RERR
AEBEBERDBA/RHESF(RMFF22) 2
BERERAZRELRGE - IAKRE
BREBEBBRM LTRE

BEE ST
RZZZENF - WREREB LA TE’
5%im AT B S B35~ - RIEANETE
FEERA51,0008T(ZETLF=A
=+—B:TET)
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Creditrisk

(e)

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
It has policies in place to ensure that sales of products
are made and services are provided to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Bank deposits are limited to high-
credit-quality financial institutions. The Group has policies that
limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivables are
set out in note 24.

Foreign currency risk

The Group does not have a significant foreign currency risk
exposure arising from its sales and purchases transactions
as these transactions are mainly carried out in Hong
Kong dollars. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

41. COMMITMENTS

Operating leases commitment

At 30 June 2008, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as
follows:

(@

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

40. €@ T BEum)
(d) ERERR

(e)

AEBYEEARBRBESEFBER - AE
B2 BEREERAERIFERTENEP
HEEMRMREHRRY - ROTFRERNS
ERFRZHBEHE - AEBETERRR
B BB R 2 (EEERBER

BRASBRKIENRSI B2 ERRR 2 E
— S BIERBEE N M E24 -

SRR
HREERXRHEBETTET - MAKE
VEZEXFEEZBEBRNIMNERR -
It WERBGREDA

41, EiE

(a

REBNRRE
RZZEZNFRR=1H  TAHELS
Mz BN BRREEEFRERNOT

30 June 31 March

2008 2007

—EENE —TTLHF

A~A=tH =A=+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTExT FHT

Within 1 year —FR 3,392 682
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREBERFR 7,787 88
After 5 years FFi%& 8,711 -
19,890 770

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
two years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt # R &R 5T

41.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2008 not
provided for in the financial statements of the Group were as
follows:

41, AE @

(b) BEFEE
RIZZBZENFRA=THEKREEMIALR
MAREETBRRBEE 2 EAAELT

30 June 31 March
2008 2007
“BEENE —TTHF
~B=+H =ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT

Contracted but not provided for: D ETHMBAR B
Acquisition of equipment BARE - 5,120
Acquisition of a property W2 30,217 -
Acquisition of software AR 1,211 -
Decoration of hotel properties BV 39,416 -
Design of moulds JEtHEA - 480
Capital contribution of subsidiaries SEEKIBAT 51,111 58,968
Investment in joint venture REEANTNRE 18,333 -
140,288 64,568

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

122

The Company and a subsidiary of the Group are defendants in
a legal action involving the alleged default payment for one of
the installment payments to the plaintiff. The said subsidiary of
the Group had acquired certain intellectual property in 2004 with
consideration payable by quarterly installments and the Company is
a guarantor.

The plaintiff is claiming for the amount of HK$2,550,000, being the
full remaining balances of the consideration payable to the plaintiff
in June 2006, together with interest thereon and cost. The Group
settled the disputed installment payment as well as the subsequent
installments which were due for repayment from time to time. The
remaining balance of the consideration payable of HK$550,000 to
the plaintiff as at 30 June 2008 had already been included in the
Group’s consolidated balance sheet.

The directors of the Company, based on legal advice, consider
that the action will remain pending for a while but it can be
successfully defended and therefore no further provision will be
required.

42. HREE

ARRRAEE—RMB R RN IEBIERREHR
PN BN R Z SRR IIRRE - RAKEMN
BRAEANR_ZTTMFEAE THRERE AR
BABFHIHXN  MARRRERA -

[REREE%E2,550,0008 7 ' IR _TTRF
NARMREZZHNRERE EREEFNER
KA - REEEBEZFR D BREURER
TSEEBEEZ DHRE - RZFEENFRA
=18 EFNREGZREEES50,00087TE 5
AREBEREEERER °

ARREERBPERBRRR - ARFALED
BEEOR - R AR - MBAIEHE— P8
o
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following represents a summary of material transactions during
the period/year between the Group and related parties identified
by the directors:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 3R K M5t

43. BERIRS
AEMRERMHBIBES NS, FRgTE
AZSEEMT -

Period from

1 April 2007 to
30June  Year ended
2008 31 March
B=EBtH 2007

WA—BZ FE
—BENE —TTtHF
AA=tH =A=+—H
1EHARS WEFE
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Operating expenses paid B EERY 0] 180
Consultancy fee paid B ERE (i) 72
Debts assigned to directors EBERTEEES (i) 448
Loan interest income A BUA (iv) -

Directors of the Company have provided personal guarantee for
banking facilities to the extent of HK$15,000,000 granted to the
Group and the Company.

Note:

@)  The directors, Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert,
Mr. Lam Shiu San and Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, paid certain operating
expenses on behalf of the Group.

(i)  Consultancy fee paid to Digital Bank Technology Limited, where Mr.
Lam Shiu San is the common director, for the provision of technical
support.

(i) ~ The net balances of amount due by the related companies have
been assigned to the directors, Ms. Wong Yuen Yee and Mr. Wong
Kwok Sing.

(iv)  Loan interest income from United Premier Medical Group Limited, an
associate of the Group.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above

transactions with related parties were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of business.
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() EBEFEERREEL EHRELE MEREERE
RBEERKRAREXNETEERX °

(i)  FERETDEREEM SRR T B ER
RARAR(MKREETAZARZES)

(iy BAEARBERZEHEAERFHECHBETESTEN
RRLRERBLLE -

v) EFRFEMATREAEEHRATREERSE
.

ARABEERR  LREEEHTLZRHTIN
B EEBBEPIE MR ERTUETT -
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the period/year was as follows:

Basic salary, allowance and other benefits
Recognised retirement pension
Share-based payments

EHERZERE
PABR D R 2 2

BEXRGE R REMMER

43. BERFRZ @
TEEEBEAECHE
H FRAEERHMTIBEEBAB SO :

Period from

1 April 2007 to
30 June

2008
B=RRLE
A—HBZ

Year ended
31 March
2007

HE
ZETAF
—A=1+—8
HEE
HK$'000
FHT

—BEN\F
~NA=+H
LEHARE
HK$’000
FBxT

4,157
59

4,216

44. EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
(@ On 29 August 2008, the Company had completed its placing
of 107,704,193 shares from existing shareholders at a price
of HK$0.37 per share.

(b) In July 2008, the Group had completed its exchange of
shares of its associated company namely, United Premier
Medical Group Limited, with shares of a company traded on
the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board of the United States
namely, China Health Care Corporation (Formerly known as
The Cavalier Group).

124

44, FERARSBE
@ R-ZZEZENFENA=-FTNA - KAQAEE
BROJTELZERMBRERIREE
107,704,193 A& 15 B 5 52/ ©

) RZZFTTNFLA  AEBHEEBREQ
7] {R B B R & B (United Premier Medical
Group Limited)TERX IR D32 5 - Z AR 2K
REBRSINZ S RZHEE + BB AChina
Health Care Corporation (& The Cavalier
Group) °
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